
AGENDA FOR

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Contact: Julie Gallagher
Direct Line: 0161 2536640
E-mail: julie.gallagher@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Health Scrutiny Committee

Councillors: J Grimshaw, S Haroon, T Holt, K Hussain, 
N Jones, O Kersh, Smith, S Smith (Chair), 
Susan Southworth, R Walker and S Wright

Dear Member/Colleague

Health Scrutiny Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee 
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Thursday, 8 November 2018

Place: Meetings Rooms A&B, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of Health Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider whether 
they have an interest in any of the matters on the agenda and if so, to 
formally declare that interest.

3  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting 
on any matters for which this Committee is responsible.

4  MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4)

Minutes of the meeting held on the 6th September 2018 are attached.

5  LOCALITY PLAN UPDATE  (Pages 5 - 20)

Geoff Little, Chief Executive Bury Council, Jeff Schryer, Chair Bury 
Clinical Commissioning Group and Chris O'Gorman, Independent 
Chair, Locality Care Alliance will attend the meeting.  Reports 
attached.

6  NORTH EAST SECTOR - CLINICAL SERVICES TRANSFORMATION  
(Pages 21 - 142)

Representatives from Bury’s Clinical Commissioning Group will report at 
the meeting.

7  CARE ACT POLICIES  (Pages 143 - 166)

Helen Marrow, Personalisation and Support Business Manager and Shirley 
Allen, Project Lead will be in attendance.  Report and presentation 
attached.

8  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency. 



93

HSC.139 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

HSC.140 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no questions from members of the public present at the meeting.

HSC.141 MINUTES

It was agreed:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 21st June 2018 be approved as a 
correct record.

HSC.142 UPDATE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, GEOFF LITTLE

Geoff Little, Bury Council Chief Executive attended the meeting to provide 
members with an update in respect of the delivery of the Locality Plan - 
“Transforming Health and Social Care in Bury”. 

The presentation contained information in respect of the two key areas of 
organisational changes for Bury:-
Locality Care Alliance (LCA); and 
Single Commissioning Organisation (OCO)

The Chief Executive outlined the key components of the LCA and the OCO:

Minutes of: HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 6th September 2018

Present: Councillor  S Smith (in the Chair)
Councillors  J Grimshaw, S Haroon, T Holt, N Jones,  Susan 
Southworth, R Walker and S Wright

Also in 
attendance: Geoff Little, Chief Executive, Bury Council

Dr Schryer, Chair of Bury Clinical Commissioning Group
Dave Latham, Programme Director, Bury Clinical 
Commissioning Group
Lesley Jones, Director of Public Health
Marcus Connor, Head of Corporate Policy
Julie Gallagher, Principal Democratic Services Officer

Public Attendance:   1 member of the public was present at the meeting.

Apologies for 
Absence:

Councillors  O Kersh and L Smith 

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 4



94

The LCA, will include five neighbourhood teams with staff co-located with a 
single line management system as well as a joined up case management 
system.  Borough-wide integrated services will provide intermediate services 
and manage patient flows into and out of hospitals.

The purpose of creating a Single Commission Organisation is to align the 
Council’s commissioning of social care and public health with the CCG 
commissioning of acute, primary, community and mental health services.   
The key components of the One Commission Organisation (OCO) will be:-
 Pooled budgets
 Single budget processes
 A single commissioning strategy
 Shared performance data and intelligence driving commissioning and 

decommissioning decisions
 New approaches to commissioning based on outcomes.

A single executive team will be created with combined roles covering both 
the CCG and Council responsibilities.  This will require significant 
organisational development and staff engagement.

Those present were invited to ask questions and the following issues were 
raised.

Responding to a Member’s question the Chief Executive reported that the 
proposals contained within the Locality Plan will help to address the CCG’s 
75 million pound funding gap by providing joined up services and shifting 
resources in to early intervention.

Responding to Member’s concern in respect of lack of progress; the Chief 
Executive reported that there has been some slippage in the development 
of the OCO and the LCA.  The Council has been informed that the 
transformation monies will not be released until further detailed information 
in respect of the Locality Plan is received.  The proposals will require full 
consultation with staff.   

The Chief Executive reported that the current fragmentation of 
commissioning has made it difficult to focus resources on the priorities set 
out in the Locality Plan.  By working jointly with the CCG via the one 
commissioning organisation and taking a more holistic approach to the 
delivery of services this will help to address some of the Borough’s health 
inequalities.

With regards to the implementation timelines, the Chief Executive reported 
that they are realistic and align with Greater Manchester and specific 
financial targets.

In response to a Member’s question, the Chief Executive reported that the 
flow of patients is very complex and any changes across the Acute sector 
will need to be coordinated at a Greater Manchester level.  Work is 
underway to improve services and outcomes as well as reduce costs within 
the Acute Trusts.

Document Pack Page 2



95

The Chief Executive reported that the way healthcare services are delivered 
will need to change and work will need to be undertaken with the public 
and other stakeholders to manage that change.

It was agreed:

The Chief Executive be thanked for his attendance and be invited to attend 
a subsequent meeting of the Committee, date to be confirmed.  Future 
presentation will include information in respect of an updated 
transformation timeline, staffing implications, financial monitoring including 
transformation monies, managing risk/risk register and governance.

HSC.143   BURY CLINCIAL COMMISSIONING GROUP – CONSULTATION ON   
PROPOSED CHANGES TO IN-VETRO FERTISLISATION 

Representatives from Bury’s Clinical Commissioning Group attended the 
meeting to inform members of the proposed changes to the provision of IVF 
across the Borough. 

Members considered the proposed changes, this followed an informal 
briefing undertaken by representatives from Bury CCG with the Committee 
Chair prior to the commencement of the consultation.  

Members were reminded of their duties as prescribed in the Health and 
Social Care Act.  Members were satisfied that the Chair had been engaged 
early in the process and by undertaking this engagement, the Chair was 
able to influence the consultation process.  Members discussed the 
consultation documentation and were satisfied that sufficient information 
had been provided as to the reasons for the proposed change and adequate 
time had been allowed for the public consultation.

The committee discussed the rationale for the proposed changes in 
particular the wider financial pressures facing the CCG and the inability of 
the CCG to continue to address the financial gap through the use of non-
recurrent monies.

Members sought assurances that responses to the public consultation would 
be taken into account when the CCG Governing Body convene to decide on 
the future provision of ICF services on 26th September 2018.

Member discussed the number of cycles offered across the other Greater 
Manchester areas; neighbouring authorities in Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale; Oldham and Tameside and Glossop currently all provide 3 cycles.  
Only four of the 195 CCG’s currently offer three cycles of treatment, all four 
areas are in Greater Manchester.
   

        It was agreed:
 

1. Members of the committee agreed unanimously that a reduction in the 
number of IVF cycles, would still allow safe, sustainable and accessible 
services for the local population.

Document Pack Page 3



96

2. In light of the financial pressures, members resolved not to specify a 
preference with regards to the number of IVF cycles stating only, that a 
service must still be provided (not option 4)

3. The principal democratic services officer would provide a response on 
behalf of the health overview and scrutiny committee for consideration 
at the CCG Board meeting due to be held on the 26th September 2018.

HSC.144 WORK PROGRAMME

It was agreed:

That the principal democratic services officer and the Chair would meet to 
review and update the work programme.

Councillor S Smith 
In the Chair

(Note:  The meeting started at 7pm and ended at 8.10pm)

Document Pack Page 4



DECISION OF: Cabinet

DATE: October 2018

SUBJECT: Progress on implementation of the Bury Health and 
Social Care Locality Plan and appointment of the Chief 
Officer of Bury CCG

REPORT FROM: Cllr Andrea Simpson, Deputy Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing

CONTACT OFFICER: Geoff Little, Chief Executive
Julie Gonda, Interim Executive Director for Communities 
and Wellbeing

TYPE OF DECISION: KEY DECISION

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

SUMMARY: This report is to update Cabinet on progress on the 
implementing the Bury Locality Plan.  In particular, it 
covers updates in respect of the development of:

 The Local Care Alliance;
 Bury’s Single Commissioning Function;
 The financial implications of the Locality Plan for 

the health and social care system overall and for 
the Council in particular and

 Bury’s position in relation to standardisation of 
hospital services across Greater Manchester and 
the future of the Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS 
Trust. 

The report also sets out proposals in respect of the 
appointment of the Chief Executive of Bury Council to 
also hold the post of as the Chief Officer of NHS Bury 
CCG.

1

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 5 Agenda Item 5



OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

Cabinet is recommended to:

1. Note the progress that has been made in the 
implementation of the Bury Locality Plan and 
approve the move to the next phase of integration;

2. Note the key milestones to be achieved by 31 March 
2019 and agree the next steps of integration as set 
out in the report;

3. Approve the appointment of Bury Council Chief 
Executive as NHS Bury CCG’s Chief Officer from 1 
October 2018, as agreed at the Governing Body 
meeting of the CCG on 6 September 2018 and NHS 
approval.

Reasons for Recommendations

The approval of the recommendations will facilitate the 
next steps of the integration process for alignment of 
functions and governance arrangements to operate.

IMPLICATIONS: Failure to support this work will result in the 
Council not delivering transformation in line 
with the Council’s priorities and GM 
Devolution

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

Reforming Health & Social Care in Bury is 
critical to the financial sustainability of the 
Council, the CCG and the wider Health & 
Social Care economy.

Establishment of a single commissioning 
approach and a Local Care Alliance are key to 
the delivery of the Borough’s Locality Plan.

Activity outlined in this report will be funded 
using Transformation Funding obtained via 
Greater Manchester through the devolution 
deal.

2

Document Pack Page 6



Health and Safety Implications No issues identified at this stage.

Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources (including Health 
and Safety Implications)

There are no wider resource implications

Equality/Diversity implications:
A key purpose of the Locality Plan is to 
reduce inequalities in healthy life expectancy 
between Bury and national averages and 
within the Borough.  Any more detailed 
equality issues will be considered as part of 
the implementation of any specific elements 
of the proposals contained in this report, 
such as those associated with the proposed 
impact on staff structures.

Considered by Monitoring Officer: The Council has the power to integrate health 
and social care and take decisions using a 
combination of powers comprising the Health 
Act 1999, the National Health Service Act 
2006 and the general power of competence 
under Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011. 
The health legislation creates “flexibilities” for 
partnership working which include 
establishing pooled budgets, lead 
commissioning and integrated provision.
The flexibilities can be used together, for 
example where one partner takes on the role 
of commissioning services and managing 
existing services and staff, whether or not 
the partners retain separate budgets. 
Alternatively, the partners can establish an 
integrated service, where services are pooled 
and staff are integrated and managed by one 
partner through a pooled budget. In addition 
the NHS and Public Health (Functions and 
Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2013 
enable certain Clincical Commissioning Group 
functions to be exercised jointly, including 
through a joint committee. 
Partners retain responsibility for their 
functions but can delegate within appropriate 
schemes of delegation as to the scope of 
activities to be performed. The Council must 
ensure that the statutory role of the Director 
of Adult Social Services is accountable for the 
delivery of those functions (set out in 
Schedule 1 of the Local Authority Social 
Services Act 1970). 
Suitable governance arrangements will be 
identified as work progresses. Amongst other 
matters, the report sets out further 

3

Document Pack Page 7



development of the Local Care Alliance and 
integrated commissioning of health and social 
care.

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest:

TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Cabinet 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

Scrutiny Committee Cabinet/Committee Council

1. BACKGROUND

In February 2015 as part of Greater Manchester’s devolution plans, the 37 NHS 
organisations and local authorities signed an agreement to take charge of health 
and care spending within the city region. A strategic plan, ‘Taking Charge of our 
Health and Social Care in Greater Manchester’ was developed to address the 
known poor health outcomes and inequalities experienced by local people and 
the anticipated financial deficit of £2bn by 2020/21. As part of the devolution 
arrangements, each borough developed its own ‘Locality Plan’ to transform 
health and care, to improve outcomes and experience for local people in a 
sustainable health and care system.

In Bury too many people become ill too early, with significant health inequalities 
impacting upon the Borough’s most deprived communities.  Healthy life 
expectancy in Bury is 58.5 years for men compared to an England average of 
63.3 and 62.2 for females compared to 63.9 for England.  In Bury’s most 
deprived communities healthy life expectancy is as low as 53.1 for men and 54.2 
for women.  One in three children are not school ready at age five.

On a do nothing basis, it is anticipated that the health and care system will have 
a £75.6m financial deficit by 2020/21.  This is caused by limited resources whilst 
the population grows and becomes older.  Bury’s population is projected to 
increase by 3.4% by 2021 (to 194k) and the proportion of that population over 
65 will increase by 9.5% over the same period.

4

Document Pack Page 8



Bury’s Locality Plan identified a number of key relationships that needed to be 
developed differently to ensure that Health and Social Care transformation could 
be delivered effectively by 2020/21. The plan set out a number of key 
transformational changes and programmes to improve outcomes and close the 
financial gap, delivering financial sustainability. The objective was to empower 
local people to remain well for longer, making informed choices about their health 
and care, within an integrated delivery model with a focus on prevention and 
early intervention.

The plan articulated an ambition to bring together the main providers of health 
and social care services to explore innovative methods of delivery, improve 
outcomes for Bury people and reduce costs.  To do this five partner organisations 
have come together in March 2017 to form a Locality Care Alliance.  The five 
partners are:-

 Bury GP Practices Ltd.  This is a federation of all GP Practices in Bury.
 The Council
 The Northern Care Alliance NHS Group.  This is a group of NHS Trusts 

comprising Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust and the Pennine Acute 
Hospitals NHS Trust (including Fairfield Hospital)

 Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust which provides community health and 
mental health services to a number of localities across Greater Manchester 
including Bury

 BARDOC, a provider of primary care out of hours services across Bury, 
Rochdale and Bolton.

In April 2018,  a formal agreement was signed which holds each partner to 
account in terms of operating ‘system wide’ with a focus on delivery of 
transformation and generating improved outcomes for the people of Bury.

The Locality Plan also highlighted the benefits of bringing together the health 
and social care commissioning functions of Bury Council and Bury CCG into 
One Commissioning Organisation, with a pooled or aligned budget, a single 
commissioning strategy and strategically commissioning for outcomes. 

As part of Greater Manchester’s plans to ensure acute hospital and specialist 
services are sustainable and of a consistently high quality, Pennine Acute 
Hospitals NHS Trust (PAHT) services are currently being managed by Salford 
Royal NHS Foundation Trust via a management agreement. Running until 
December 2019, this agreement will support the development of new ways of 
working that will ensure patients receive consistently high standards of care. 

Longer-term plans for PAHT are being developed to ensure stabilisation and 
transformation of the hospital sites, delivering improved care and patient 
experience, economies of scale and value for money. Whilst plans are subject to 
due diligence, business case approval, financial plan agreement and receiving 
support from NHS Improvement and the Competition and Markets Authority, the 
direction of travel is for the Fairfield site, along with the Royal Oldham and 
Rochdale Infirmaries to be acquired by Salford Royal Foundation Trust with the 
North Manchester site acquired by Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust.

5

Document Pack Page 9



2. Update in respect of the development of the Locality Care Alliance (LCA)

The purpose of the LCA is to help people to remain healthy for as long as possible 
and when people do need health and care services for these to be provided for 
as long as possible in their own houses.  The intention is therefore to reduce 
admissions to acute health and residential care services by shifting more care 
and resources into the community.  This will be a major contributor to improving 
the services received by Bury people and reducing the financial gap. 

The work in respect of the LCA is driven through the sponsorship of the Chief 
Executives of the 5 partner organisations within the Alliance together wth the 
LCA Board.  Each Chief Executive reports through the governance of their own 
organisations.  In the Council’s case this is through the Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for health and social care and the Deputy Leader in the Council, 
Councillor Andrea Simpson.

The following progress has been made in the last three months:-

 The host arrangements for the LCA have been transferred from Pennine Care 
Foundation Trust to the Northern Care Alliance, including back office support. 
 This is bringing additional capacity for delivery.

 The LCA Partnership Board terms of reference have been refreshed with 
equality of votes between the five provider partners. This Board will hold the 
LCA management team to account.  The Bury Voluntary, Community and 
Faith Alliance (VCFA) and Persona are included on the Board as non-voting 
members;

 Additional senior capacity to deliver has been put in place through the full-
time appointment of Kath Wynne-Jones, a senior manager from Northern 
Care Alliance as Interim Executive Lead, and a Director of Transformation & 
Delivery Lindsey Darley who expected to start in December.

 An LCA management team is in the process of being established to accelerate 
delivery and operate as a single management team, including key roles from 
within each partner organisation, such as:

 a senior manager of the GP Federation to support the leadership and 
coordination role of Primary Care in each of the five neighbourhoods. 

 a senior manager of Adult Social Care, 
 a senior manager of Community Health
 a senior manager of Community Mental Health  

These decisions, and the introduction of additional capacity at a senior level have 
led to the development of a detailed work plan for the next six months which 
focuses on the following components of the LCA and with key milestones to 
ensure delivery by 31 March 2019:-

Five Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTs) covering the whole of the Borough 
that consist of primary care, adult social care, community care and VCFA staff 
will be operational by April 19.  The teams will have:

6

Document Pack Page 10



- Single line management by five team leaders, reporting to a single post in the 
LCA management team 

- Co-located community health, adult social work and VCFA staff in 
neighbourhoods supporting the delivery of high quality primary care

- Joint access to case management systems and access to relevant care records
- Risk stratified identification of cohorts, from the beginning of INTs going live.

Not all services will be based in the neighbourhood teams because of economies 
of scale.  These services will be borough wide, or in the case of links to services 
in front of A&E and Integrated Discharge Teams, in hospitals in and beyond Bury. 
 These services will be fully part of the LCA service model so that the flow of 
demand into and out of hospitals and residential care can be regulated. 

The neighbourhood teams will be fully integrated with the intermediate tier of 
provision (ie between neighbourhood and hospital based services).This will bring 
together services such as reablement, intermediate care and end of life care 
provision to enable patients to effectively step up and down through different 
levels of intensity of care across Bury.

The purpose of the LCA is to help Bury people remain healthy for as long as 
possible and when they do need health and social care services for the care to 
be provided for as long as possible in their own homes and less often in hospital 
or residential care.  This objective requires more than a change in the way public 
service organisations work together; it requires a shift in the relationships 
between front line staff and between those staff and residents, patients and their 
careers and families.

The importance of both mental health services and social care services in 
transformation, and their links with physical health, cannot be underestimated.  
As we move forward with integration we need to truly respond to all the needs 
of a person rather than continuing to work in silos. Mental health will be fully 
integrated into all the pillars of the Transformation Plan, and there is work 
underway to understand how Mental Health Primary Care capacity can be built 
into the Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.

The detailed work now underway to develop the LCA is therefore based on a 
strength based approach to relationships.  This means different types of 
assessment where time is taken to really listen to people and their families and 
connecting to the support within families, neighbourhoods and communities.  The 
approach focuses on what people can do, not just on fitting needs into services.   
This will apply to the way packages of care are designed and managed after 
assessment.  Assessments by one service will be trusted and used by other 
services so that people do not need to keep repeating the same information.  

Connecting to the strengths in families and communities will require front line 
staff in the LCA to have a good understanding of the strengths or assets in 
families and communities.  This is one of the reasons why the voluntary and 
community sector through Bury VCFA will be built in from the start of the LCA, 
with the sector represented at all levels of governance, management and 
operational delivery.

7

Document Pack Page 11



The specific programme regarding Mental Health Service transformation is being 
led by Pennine Care Foundation Trust in line with the GM Mental Health 
programme; this has a particular focus on enhanced Crisis & Urgent Care for 
people with mental health conditions and Increasing Access to Psychological 
Therapies (IAPT), in particular for people with long-term conditions, in addition 
to a number of initiatives for young people.

Council staff in the LCA and the Council’s statutory responsibilities for 
Adult Social Care

The Council is a key partner within the development of the LCA, with Adult Social 
care being essential to the effective establishment of the Integrated 
Neighbourhood Teams. The work on scope and phasing of services to be 
transformed into the LCA proposes that the Council’s Adult Social Care Services 
should transfer in 2019/20 with aspects of Children’s services and some public 
health services transferring later.  The reason for this is to make this change 
manageable and to start with the services which will have the highest impact on 
activity levels in acute and residential care.  

This will mean approximately 235 adult social care staff being deployed from the 
Council into the LCA.  This will initially include approximately 33 moving into the 
INTs and approximately 100 moving into the integrated intermediate tier of the 
LCA.  The remainder will follow when the LCA has been further developed.  

The staff will remain employed by the Council.  They will be operationally line 
managed by LCA managers, irrespective of the professional background of the 
manager.  In other words staff in the LCA will not be managed within service 
silos.  

However it is essential that the professional expertise of staff is not diminished 
and that the Council’s statutory responsibilities for adult social care are 
protected.  The senior adult social care manager on the LCA management team 
will therefore provide professional supervision and development support to adult 
social care staff.  The senior adult social care manager will be accountable to the 
Council’s Director of Adult Social Care (a statutory post held by the Acting 
Executive Director of Communities and Wellbeing) who will in turn remain 
accountable for the Council’s statutory duties to the Council Chief Executive and 
to the Deputy Leader of the Council who holds the statutory adult social care 
responsibilities.  Approximately 13 adult social care operational staff will remain 
with the Council to run the Adults Safeguarding functions.  

The arrangements to protect the Council’s role as an employer and to ensure 
that the statutory duties for adult social care, which cannot be delegated, are 
properly discharged will be set out in detail in a legally binding agreement 
between the five LCA partners.

3. Update in respect of the Strategic Commissioning Function (OCO)

The Locality Plan commits Bury to establishing a single health and care 
commissioning function – The One Commissioning Organisation.  Bury’s One 
Commissioning Organisation Partnership Board, established in April, meets 
monthly, bringing together clinicians and lay members from the CCG Governing 

8

Document Pack Page 12



Body and members of the Council’s Cabinet and officers. The partnership board 
has a number of key priorities for the OCO, namely development of:

 A commissioning and decommissioning strategy;
 A joint financial plan and reporting;
 Pooled and aligned budgets and management arrangements;
 A performance and outcomes framework;
 A risk and quality assurance framework;
 Governance structures for the partnership, to be incorporated into a 

partnership agreement including integrated commissioning proposals.

The OCO Partnership Board is the foundation of the OCO and will be developed 
into a formal Single Commissioning Board for Bury with equal equality of 
representation from Members of the Council and the CCG Governing Body.  The 
Board will be accountable to the Cabinet of the Council maintaining the local 
democratic control of Council commissioning and to the Governing Body of the 
CCG maintaining the CCG accountability for NHS resources.

A single executive team will be created with combined roles covering both CCG 
and Council responsibilities. This will require significant organisational 
development and staff engagement.

To drive forward these priorities the development of a business plan for the OCO 
is underway, with key dates and deadlines still to be finalised.  This work is led 
by the OCO Joint Executive Group, which brings together the senior management 
teams of the CCG and the Council.

The plan covers the following key areas:

 Develop and implement a target operating model
 Produce joint commissioning strategy, plans and approaches
 Establish joint financial planning and reporting mechanisms
 Establish ‘business as usual’ risk and quality assurance frameworks and 

processes
 Staff development and engagement

Work is progressing to develop a target operating model (TOM) for the OCO, that 
reflects its size, functions and statutory duties. The TOM will also be informed by 
the GM Commissioning Framework and learning from models in place across 
Greater Manchester. OCO senior managers recently visited Tameside to 
understand their development journey and single commissioning function 
arrangements. 

In order to both make savings and progress commissioning on a joint basis, four 
test-bed areas of thematic commissioning have been identified.  These test beds 
are:

 Carers
 Continuing healthcare and complex cases, including Learning Disability 

services
 Mental Health
 Special Educational Needs & Disability

Update reports will be brought to Cabinet at regular intervals.

9

Document Pack Page 13



4. Appointment of joint leadership – Chief Executive of Bury Council and    
Accountable Officer for NHS Bury CCG

One of the most significant opportunities of Greater Manchester devolution is to 
create single place based leadership of health and social care.  The most 
important part of such place based leadership is the partnership between the 
political leaders of Councils and local clinical leaders in the NHS.  In Bury this is 
being successfully achieved through the OCO Partnership Board and the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.  This political and clinical partnership now provides the 
basics for single managerial leadership.  

On 5 September 2018 following interview, the CCG recommended the 
appointment of Geoff Little, Chief Executive of Bury MBC to the position of 
Accountable Officer to the CCG.  This was subsequently confirmed by Simon 
Stevens, Chief Executive of NHS England. This is subject to approval by the 
Council’s Cabinet.

Should Cabinet approval be given, this appointment will 

 Be consistent with a number of other areas within Greater Manchester, with 
five out of the 10 areas having dual appointments of Chief Executive / Chief 
Officer;

 Underpin the fact that a joined up and consistent approach is essential to 
effective commissioning for the future to meet the needs of Bury people;

 Bring the functions and responsibilities of two separate organisations into one 
place, providing a stronger basis for system-wide decision making than the 
historical reliance on effective partnership working;

 Strengthen the ability to move the health and care system to a preventative 
wellbeing model, with proactive short term care when needed, thus reducing 
reliance on high cost acute and responsive care.

The Cabinet is therefore requested to approve the appointment of the 
Chief Executive of Bury Council as the Chief Officer of Bury CCG.

5. Financial position of the Bury Health and Social Care System

Overview

The financial gap of the health and care system in Bury will reach £74.6m by 
2020/21.  £32m of the projected “do nothing” gap relates to Adults and 
Children’s Social Care. 

Without transformation of the health and care system, many of the council 
savings targets will not be achieved.  The interdependencies within the system 

10

Recurrent Gap
2020/21
£m

%age of 
2020/21 
cost base

BMBC ASC and CSC 32 26
Bury CCG 15 5
Hospitals / Providers 27 12
Total 74

Document Pack Page 14



cannot be underestimated, and it is essential that the NHS and Council do not 
work in isolation of each other.

Financial Opportunities

The Council, CCG and other stakeholders are better equipped to address the 
systemic problems in the health and care economy through collaboration, rather 
than acting independently.  The work described in Section 3 and 4 above will 
deliver improved services and experiences for the public as well as financial 
efficiencies.  The financial efficiencies can be categorised as:

- Optimal pathway design and better care
- Optimal decision making and joint working
- Technical opportunities and wider benefits

Optimal pathway design and better care

This includes the programmes of work described in the Locality Plan, and 
supported from the GM Transformation Fund. The GM Health and Social Care 
Partnership awarded £19.2m Transformation Funding in 2017 to Bury Locality.  
To date the following sums have been earmarked and/or approved for the various 
programmes:

£m
Transforming Primary, Community and Social Care 8.0

Transforming Urgent Care 2.0
Giving Every Child the Best Start in Life 0.5
Enabling Local People and Keeping Bury Well 2.0
Transforming Mental Health
Enabling and development fund 8.0
Contingency 2.0
Local funding (3.3)
Total 19.2

These funds are to support the implementation costs and pump priming of 
transformational schemes, and to cover “double running” costs (i.e. the costs of 
running “as is” services in parallel to building new ones).

It was understood and agreed by all stakeholders involved in the production of 
the Locality Plan that most of the financial savings (c£40m) will be generated by 
avoiding unnecessary hospital admissions and attendances; and the majority of 
those hospital “deflections” would be achieved through the LCA.  Hospital 
deflections reduce CCG commissioning costs, which in turn allows funds to be 
reprioritised “downstream” to community, primary and social care 
commissioning.

The table below shows the original deflection ambition by 2020/21 from the 
Locality Plan compared to the latest projections.  Note: most of the reduction in 
2020/21 targets is due to slippage in programme implementation. 

11

Document Pack Page 15



A&E
%

Non
Electiv
e
%

Electiv
e
%

O/P
First
%

O/P
F-up
%

Original deflection target (vs 
16/17 base) (17.0) (21.6) (13.0) (20.0) (25.0)

Deflection target after 
applying 12 months’ 
slippage

(9.2) (8.0) (5.8) (5.0) (10.0)

Optimism bias to be applied 20.0 20.0 40.0 40.0 20.0

Revised deflection targets 
after moderating for 
optimism bias (17/18 base)

(6.6) (5.9) (3.4) (3.0) (8.1)

There is a detailed piece of work being undertaken, led by the Locality Care 
Alliance, to re-assess the scale and phasing of targets beyond 2020/21, with a 
particular focus on Transforming Primary, Community and Social Care.  The key 
milestones in this 90 day review are:

 
 Mid October: Neighbourhood model description locked down and LCA 

Management Team in place. 

 Mid November: 

1) full system model  (including enablers) and in scope/hosting 
arrangements locked down and described, following stakeholder 
engagement (including the 1:1 CE meetings).

2) Proposed operational arrangements for staff working within the 
neighbourhood teams from a governance, HR, estates and digital 
perspective. 

3) Mid December: next iteration of the mutually binding agreement 
agreed,  supported by 

4) A description of revised governance arrangements (including terms of 
reference for strategic groups, operational groups and formally 
established LCA management team)

5) The list of in-scope services to be included in go live April 19.
6) Data pack which describes the key health and social care needs of the 

Borough
7) The financial, activity and outcome schedule (connected to the planning 

and contracting round) for the next 3 years between the LCA and OCO
8) Proposal for the  allocation of the remaining resources
9) Full financial schedule developed for the Transformation Fund
10) Scheme of Delegation and Workforce Protocol agreed describing how 

Operational, Transformational and Professional accountabilities will be 
managed

11) Hosting agreement
12)Risk and reward framework

Risk stratification data suggests that each INT will need a caseload of circa 160 
in order to deliver the deflection targets.  This is deemed as achievable within 
timescales.  It is also recognised that there should be significant opportunities 
for workforce efficiencies and savings in, for example, residential care packages 
(through keeping people at home or in more appropriate settings for longer).  

12

Document Pack Page 16



Optimal decision making and joint working

Joint working has already delivered financial benefits of c£0.5m in premise costs. 
 There are further opportunities in management structure and back office 
functions.

Four “test beds” are currently being fast tracked for pooling of budgets, 
associated due diligence and joint working.  As noted above, they are:

- Packages of care (including Learning Disability)
- Mental Health
- Special educational needs
- Carers

Technical Opportunities and Wider Benefits

Integration allows the Council and CCG to agree and work towards a shared 
vision for Bury’s residents and start to pool resources and share risks, managing 
on a place base rather than in organisational silos.  This will move away from the 
kind of harmful decisions seen in the past which have, at best, resulted in cost 
shunts between organisations and, at worst, seen increased costs to the public 
sector as a whole. 

Integration of the Council and the CCG will allow the whole of spending on health 
and care to be connected to total public spending in Bury.  This will enable a 
focus on the underlying determinates of health such as increasing school 
readiness, the Bury Life Chances Commission, transformation of mental health 
service for children and adults, housing including Extra Care and supported 
housing, air quality and social prescribing.

Integration makes this much more doable.

There are a number of potential technical financial benefits arising from 
integration.  E.g. opportunities for different funding sources, different VAT rules 
and flexibilities.

Working together should bring improved procurement results, e.g. by jointly 
commissioning nursing and residential home beds.  There may be some 
economies of scale in overheads, too.

Integration of Data is a critical enabler for transformation.  Giving front line staff 
shared access to patient and service user records should significantly improve 
the efficiency of services as well as the patient experience and outcomes.  
Sharing of “big data” should also allow better risk stratification, allowing us to 
target limited resources more effectively and get a bigger return.

6. Pennine Acute Transaction and what it means for Bury

As part of Greater Manchester-wide plans to ensure acute and specialist hospital 
services are sustainable and of a high quality, plans are being developed for the 
Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust sites. 

The planned acquisition of the North Manchester site by Manchester University 
NHS Foundation Trust is progressing.  It is anticipated that the Fairfield site, 

13

Document Pack Page 17



together with Royal Oldham and Rochdale Infirmary sites, will be acquired by 
Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust. 

The work is currently developing and will soon complete a case for change. It is 
intended that this be considered by the CCG’s Governing Body, the One 
Commissioning Organisation Partnership Board and Council Cabinet.

Once the case for change is finalised the Board will then agree evaluation criteria 
and examine the various options for each site, including any changes affecting 
services accessed by Bury residents, before moving to formal consultation on 
proposed changes. Work is also proceeding with the Health and Care particular 
on the improvement of acute health services across GM.  The implications of this 
work for Bury people and patients will be considered.  Further updates will be 
provided to Cabinet as work progresses.

Contact Details:-

Geoff Little – Chief Executive, Bury Council

Julie Gonda – Interim Executive Director for Communities and Wellbeing

14

Document Pack Page 18



Bury Locality

Risk Description
Actions

Completion Date for Actions

A statement describing the risk event, cause and impact

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Im
p

ac
t

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s 
 The actions and activities planned to take place that will when implemented or completed reduce, eliminate or minimise the 

risk

 Each action should have a 

completion date set

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Im
p

ac
t

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s 
 

Risk: Inability to mobilise Information Management Technology (IMT) requirements

Cause: due to insufficient capital investment

Impact: suboptimal new models, in particular integrated neighbourhood working

4 5 20

• Refresh of IMT requirements within mobilisation plans

• Establishment of IMT Enabling Workstream within programme governance with single system leadership and clear set of 

system-wide deliverables and implementation plans

• Recruitment to specialist capacity and capability within PMO establishment

• Harness current and planned GM initiatives such as ISG and Datawell

• Build upon existing strengths such as Vision across General Practice

• System-wide risk share of financial and other implementation exit costs

• Submission of DTF bids for 2018/20

31/12/2018 2 5 10

Risk inability to identify high risk / priority cohorts 

Cause: lack of dynamic risk stratification

Impact: resources won't be targeted to deliver improvements in outcomes / to reduce activity

4 5 20

• Review of current system risk stratification capabilities

• Identification of  transformation model short, medium and longer-term risk stratification requirements 

• Develop required risk stratification tools, building upon existing capabilities

31/12/2018 2 5 10

Risk: cuts to services

Cause: Efficiency / savings programmes across the system

Impact: on impact of transformation programmes / systems ability to transform

5 4 20

• System wide transparency and openness

• Joint planning

• Development of OCO and LCO

• Finance workstream to provide oversight of system-wide savings plans - to avoid double counting, 

• Transformation prioritisation process to consider risks associated with existing services 31/12/2018 3 4 12

Risk: lack of necessary system working

Cause: lack of adequate risk share agreements across providers and commissioners - Bury, NES and GM

Impact: performance and savings ambitions will not be realised 4 4 16

• Collation and development of plans across provider footprints to determine the impact on each organisation.

• Ongoing engagement with stakeholders including NHSE, NHSI and GMHSC to develop an agreed approach.

• Shared understanding of baseline metrics

• Assessment and agreement of local risk appetite.

• Development of agreements which identify what the risk is, who is involved, and recognise non-financial risks

• Local risk share arrangements to be set out in LCO mutually binding agreement and Bury Investment Agreement (linked 

to transformation programmes)

• Provider commitment to establish risk and reward agreement contained in LCO mutually binding agreement

31/03/2019 2 4 8

Risk: workforce shortages for new care models

Cause: inability to recruit / develop skills required for new models

Impact: unable to implement new models
4 4 16

• Early understanding of workforce requirements

• Early proactive workforce planning

• Establishment of HR / Workforce Enabling Workstream within programme governance with single system leadership and 

clear set of system-wide deliverables and implementation plans

• Reallocation of existing resource, use of agency and consultancy support where appropriate

• PMO dashboard to report key resourcing issues

• GM workforce planning programmes

31/09/2019 2 4 8

Pre-mitigation Post-mitigation                                                                                                                                                                                   

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 19



Bury Locality

Risk Description
Actions

Completion Date for Actions

A statement describing the risk event, cause and impact

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Im
p

ac
t

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s 
 The actions and activities planned to take place that will when implemented or completed reduce, eliminate or minimise the 

risk

 Each action should have a 

completion date set

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Im
p

ac
t

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s 
 

Pre-mitigation Post-mitigation                                                                                                                                                                                   

Risk: business as usual performance will be impacted upon by transformational change

Cause: diversion of capacity and / or capability. Disruption to BAU caused by change programmes

Impact: failure to  deliver quality and performance standards, e.g. NHS constitutional standards
3 4 12

• Ongoing performance monitoring and management via existing performance management structures, systems and 

processes - see capacity issue

• Development and implementation of transformation / change management programme

• Additional resource to be secured to undertake / backfill capacity released to deliver transformation where required
31/12/2018 2 4 8

Risk: transformation programmes don’t deliver planned improvements

Cause: inaccurate planning / modelling assumptions, poor execution of programmes

Impact: sustainability, outcomes and performance improvements not realised 4 5 20

• Programme level impact / benefit modelling

• Locality plan aggregation sense checking, eliminating double counting

• PMO approach implemented to ensure successful delivery

• Programmes developed for transformation drivers (e.g. workforce, comms and engagement, IM&T etc) to support 

transformation programme success

30/09/2018 2 4 8

Risk: local people, staff and other stakeholders don’t buy-in to new models

Cause: failure to engage and involve them in the design, development and delivery of transformation 

programmes

Impact: required behaviour / culture changes not realised

4 5 20

• Establish Communications and Engagement workstream including system-wide representation

• Secure dedicated specialist resource to lead work programme development and delivery

• Development of comprehensive internal and external communications, engagement and involvement strategies and 

plans - including local people and staff working in H&SC

• Develop communications and engagement toolkit to enable effective and consistent delivery
31/12/2018 3 4 12

Risk: inability to co-locate integrated neighbourhood teams

Cause: lack of suitable estate

Impact: inability to implement preferred integrated neighbourhood team model 4 4 16

• Establish Bury Strategic and Operational Estates Groups, ensuring system-wide representation 

• Undertake neighbourhood asset review

• Map existing estate to neighbourhood footprints

• Identify future estate requirements - aligned to new models / ways of working

• Develop property options and scenarios’ through the Bury SEG.

• Ensure integration with other enablers.

• Early id of resource needs, project responsibilities and reporting.

31/12/2018 3 4 12

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 20



North East Sector Clinical 

Services Transformation:

A Shared Hospital Service, for 

our shared population

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 21
A

genda Item
 6



NES Clinical Services Transformation Programme

The aim of the programme:

§ The aim of this programme is for North East Sector commissioners and 

providers to co-develop a plan that secures the clinical, financial and 

workforce sustainability of all acute services by 2024/25.

§ These plans support and complement wider LCO plans to strengthen 

community support, deliver more care closer to home and maximise the 

use of all estate within the 3 CCG / LA co-terminus footprint.

§ Support a shift of focus to Bury Locality Plan Programmes

§ Enabling local people

§ Giving every child the best start in life

§ Keeping Bury well

§ Transforming mental health

§ Transforming urgent and emergency care

§ Transforming primary, community and social care

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 22



A governance structure has been agreed for the programme 

Clinical 

Reference 

Group (CRG)

Comms and 

Engagement 

Group

Financial 

Reference 

Group (FRG)

CCG 

Governing Bodies

NES CST 

Programme Board

Roles and responsibilities

▪ A final decision about what 

option(s) to consult on will need 

to be made by the CCG Governing 

Bodies, in line with their statutory 

duties.

▪ The final recommendation to the 

CCG Governing Bodies will be 

made by the Clinical Services 

Transformation (CST) Board, who 

are responsible for overseeing the 

progress of the review.

▪ All other groups will be 

responsible for debating and 

agreeing key issues and 

assumptions to inform the CST 

Board. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 23



1. What is the case for change from a clinical, workforce and financial perspective, 

and which services are most impacted?

2. What evaluation criteria should be used to assess the options?

3. What are the range of clinical models that could underpin any future service 

configuration options?

4. What is the shortlist of service configuration options that we should assess 

against the evaluation criteria?

5. How do those options stack up against the evaluation criteria?

We need to be able to answer the following five questions 

through the process we have established:

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 24



The process

Case for Change

What is the 

current picture of 

healthcare in our 

area?

Emerging clinical 

models

What does good 

look like and how 

could it be 

delivered?

Autumn 2018Summer 2018

Evaluation criteria

What are the 

outcomes we 

want to achieve?

Co-designed with 

patients, 

clinicians, 

commissioners, 

Healthwatch, etc.

Using public 

health, hospital 

performance and 

quality 

information etc.

Service options

How could we 

deliver this in our 

area

Clinicians have 

been review been 

reviewing different 

clinical models

Clinicians are in 

the process of 

designing and 

modelling 

options

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 25



6

The Case for Change

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 26



Criteria Sub-criteria

5
Deliverability ▪ Expected time to deliver ▪ Ease of delivering change within 5 years

▪ Co-dependencies with other 

strategies

▪ Alignment with other strategic changes (e.g. STP, any other national and local NHS 

strategies) and provides a flexible platform for the future

3

Affordability 

and value for 

money
▪ Transition costs ▪ One off costs (excl. capital & receipts) to implement changes

▪ Meets regulatory requirements ▪ E.g. Surpluses generated by Foundation Trusts

▪ Capital cost to the system ▪ Capital requirement to achieve required capacity & quality

▪ Net present value ▪ Total value of each potential option incorporating future capital and revenue/cost 

implications and compared on like-for-like basis

1

Quality of care 

for all
▪ Clinical effectiveness

▪ Improved delivery against clinical and constitutional standards, access to skilled 

staff and specialist equipment, comparison of current clinical quality of sites

▪ Patient and carer experience

▪ Improved patient and carer experience with excellent communication & good 

estate▪ Safety
▪ Expected impact on excess mortality, serious untoward incidents

2

Access to care 

for all

▪ Distance and time to access 

services

▪ Impact on population weighted average travel times (blue light, off-peak car, peak 

car, public transport) to reflect average impact for emergency and elective 

treatment and total impact  for more isolated populations

▪ Patient choice ▪ Provides patients with choice in line with their rights in the NHS constitution

▪ Service operating hours ▪ Ability of model to facilitate 7 day working and improved access to care out of 

hours

Description

4

Workforce ▪ Scale of impact
▪ Potential impact on current staff and retraining required

▪ Sustainability
▪ Likelihood to be sustainable from a workforce perspective, facilitating 7 day 

working and addresses any other recruitment challenges
▪ Impact on local workforce

▪ Potential impact on staff attrition due to change

▪ Supports integration and co-ordination of pathways with community and primary 

care

▪ Improved delivery and reduce variation in patient outcomes and health inequalities

▪ Supports new workforce models which reflect new ways of working and education 

and training needs.

7

Evaluation criteria

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 27



The process

Case for Change

What is the 

current picture of 

healthcare in our 

area?

Emerging clinical 

models

What does good 

look like and how 

could it be 

delivered?

Autumn 2018Summer 2018

Evaluation criteria

What are the 

outcomes we 

want to achieve?

Co-designed with 

patients, 

clinicians, 

commissioners, 

Healthwatch, etc.

Using public 

health, hospital 

performance and 

quality 

information etc.

Service options

How could we 

deliver this in our 

area

Clinicians have 

been review been 

reviewing different 

clinical models

Clinicians are in 

the process of 

designing and 

modelling 

options

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 28



Identify preferred 

options

What are the 

possible options for 

delivery in our area?

National and local 

assurance 

processes

Winter 2018/19

CCGs will make a 

decision about  

consultation

To be confirmed

Implementation

The process – next steps

Evaluation criteria 

will be used to  

identify the 

preferred option

External clinical  

leaders and experts 

will check our 

proposals are robust, 

evidence-based and 

deliverable

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 29



Questions?

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 30



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATION

NES Clinical Services:

Case for Change

DRAFT DOCUMENT

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 31



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

2

Summary case for change

SUBJECT TO UPDATES

Consolidation is one of 

several ways to address 

the fragility of acute 

services

… this is good for the local 

population, but will put 

further pressure on 

already fragile acute 

services …

The local population is 

growing and getting older, 

within a system already 

delivering some poor 

outcomes

To address this, a different 

sort of care will be 

required to that 

historically provided ...

… resulting in decreased 

hospital activity and 

better health outcomes …

▪ The Healthier Together business case (2015) has already recommended that some services, e.g. general surgery, move in order to 

capture the benefits to clinical quality, workforce and financial sustainability from delivering services at scale

▪ Further consolidation may deliver similar improvements in other fragile services

▪ In addition, reductions to length of stay and increasing throughput of theatres, diagnostic services and outpatients will all enable more 

efficient hospital services and allow continued investment in out-of-hospital care

▪ Current acute hospital services are split over five sites – FGH, RI, ROH, Salford Royal Hospital and also NMGH. Declining hospital 

activity will result in subscale services at each site – below levels recommended by national clinical bodies 

▪ Services that need to be provided 7 days a week are particularly difficult to provide on sites where volumes of activity are low – this is 

particularly the case for critical care, which has consultant shortfalls at FGH and NMGH

▪ Lower volume services have been shown to be associated with poorer quality of care, with clinical teams less able to develop and 

maintain their skills, as well as higher costs due to underutilised estate and workforce

▪ There is variation in the quality of care across sites serving the NES population, with ROH and NMGH recently rated as “requiring 

improvement” and patients with MI and HF having relatively poor access to consultant cardiologists at ROH

▪ Operationally, 4-hour A&E waiting times performance has been deteriorating and is below the national average at ROH, NMGH and 

Salford, while 18-week RTT at ROH and NMGH is lower than the national average and has been declining  

▪ In terms of cost, the NCA had an underlying £82m financial gap in 2017/18 projected to reach an underlying deficit of over £100m by 

2022/23 assuming productivity increases of just over 2% are delivered each year

▪ Furthermore, recent workforce data shows that 7-18% of medical and nursing positions are vacant at sites serving NES population, 

with high levels of agency spend to try to cover these positions

▪ NES commissioners are responsible for commissioning care for Oldham, Rochdale and Bury, with most care delivered across 4 sites –

Fairfield General Hospital (FGH), Rochdale Infirmary (RI), North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH) and Royal Oldham Hospital

(ROH) – as well as links to Salford Royal Hospital via the Northern Care Alliance

▪ Collectively, along with Salford CCG, NES CCGs serve a population of ~900,000, which is growing by 0.5% per year with the number of 

people over 70 projected to grow 12% by 2025. This will result in a higher prevalence of long term conditions (LTCs) and frailty

▪ Avoidable mortality rates are already much higher than the England average, while life expectancy is among the lowest nationally

▪ To address rising population health demands, LCOs are seeking to transform out-of-hospital care focused on prevention of ill health, 

integration and moving care delivery closer to home

▪ Greater Manchester has been given £450m over 5 years as part of devolution to invest into delivering these changes in care delivery

▪ Technology will play a key part in supporting many of these new models of care e.g. virtual outpatient clinics or remote monitoring

▪ The clinical evidence base suggests that a greater focus on prevention of ill health and on caring for people with LTCs and frailty in the 

community can significantly reduce the need for acute hospital care resulting in better health status and greater independence

▪ CCG plans to implement new models of care to deflect acute activity are underway, and over the past five years, admissions across 

PAHT hospitals have fallen by 1% p.a. on average while average non-elective LoS is one of the lowest in the country for its case mix 

▪ Currently, 51% of NHS funds available locally are spent on acute care and this percentage has been falling

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 32



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

§ Our population and their needs

§ Out-of-hospital care

§ Acute care activity

§ Acute care performance

§ Acute site profiles

3

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 33



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Section summary

§ NES CCGs commission care for Bury, Rochdale and Oldham; however any 

service change will have implications for Salford and North Manchester, 

as well as vice versa

§ The population of the Bury, Rochdale, Oldham and Salford boroughs is 

slightly younger than the England average and is set to increase by 0.5% 

p.a. by 2025 with the over 70’s and 90’s being the fastest growing

§ The NES and Salford areas have very high levels of deprivation, with 

particularly high pockets of deprivation in Rochdale and Salford

§ Obesity and smoking are particularly prevalent in parts of Rochdale and 

Salford

§ Respiratory diseases, especially smoking-related ones, and depression are 

higher than the national average

§ Moreover, avoidable mortality rates are higher than other areas of the 

country with life expectancy generally less than surrounding areas apart 

from pockets in Oldham and Bury

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 34



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

The NES serves three boroughs; however any service change will have 

implications for Salford and NM, as well as vice versa NCA boroughs Hospitals

Wigan

Bolton

Bury
Rochdale

Oldham

TamesideSalford

Manchester

Stockport

Trafford

Wigan

Standish

With

Langtree

Blackrod

Wigan

WiganOrrell

Billinge & Winstanley

Ashton in

Makerfield

Abram

Golborne

Leigh

Atherton
Hindley

Ince in 

makerfield

Aspull

Horwich

Bolton

Westhoughton Farnworth

Turton

Tottington

Ramsbottom

Bury

Radcliffe

Little

Lever

Kearsley

WorsleyTyldesley

Irlam

Eccles

Urmston Stretford

Sale

Bucklow

Altrincham

Bowdon Hale

Bucklow

Cheadle &

Gatley
Hazel Grove & Bramhall

Stockport

Manchester
Salford

Prestwich

Swinton &

Pendlebury

Middleton

Whitefield

Heywood

Rochdale

Wardle
Littleborough

Milnrow

Crompton

Royton

Chadderton
Oldham

Lees

Failsworth

Droylsden

Ashton-

Under-Lyne

Mossley

Stalybridge

Dukinfield

Hyde

Longden-

daleDenton

Audenshaw

Saddleworth

Bredbury&Romiley

Marple

Royal Oldham

Hospital (ROH)

Rochdale Infirmary (RI)

Fairfield General Hospital (FGH)

North Manchester General

Hospital (NMGH)

Salford Royal 

Hospital (SRFT)

Metropolitan 

country boundary

Metropolitan 

borough boundary

Former district 

boundary

Rural district

Urban district

County borough

Municipal borough

Bury

Stretford

Oldham population:

235,000

Rochdale population:

218,000

Bury population:

190,000

Salford population:

253,000

5SOURCE: ONS 2018-based Sub National Population Projections; catchment area defined as the wards in the Boroughs of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale and Salford

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 35



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Population in the four boroughs is set to increase by 0.5% p.a. by 2025 

with the over 70’s and over 90’s being the fastest growing

231 243

358 356

204 214

97
108

7
7

2018 2025

90+

70-89

<20

50-69

20-49

896
928

+0.5% p.a.

Population projection by age, area in scope, ‘000

1.6%

0.7%

-0.1%

0.7%

1.3%

2018-25 CAGR

SOURCE: ONS 2018-based Sub National Population Projections; catchment area defined as the wards in the Boroughs of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale and Salford 6

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 36



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

The NES and Salford areas have very high levels of deprivation, with 

particularly high pockets of deprivation in Rochdale and Salford

SOURCE: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government – English indices of deprivation 2015

10

28

23

29

10

B
u
ry

S
a
lf
o
rd

R
o
ch
d
a
le

O
ld
h
a
m

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

12

32
28

47

10

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

B
u
ry

R
o
ch
d
a
le

O
ld
h
a
m

S
a
lf
o
rd

7

Overall deprivation1

% of LSOAs in most deprived decile, 2015

Health and disability deprivation

% of LSOAs in most deprived decile, 2015

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 37



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Respiratory diseases, especially smoking-related ones, 

and depression are higher than the national average

Bury CCG

All EnglandHMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Salford CCG

SOURCE: QOF 2016/17; NHS Digital Statistics on Smoking - England 2018 reporting data over 2014 to 2016 period

329

398

377

416

331

272

Bury NationalOld-

ham

Roch-

dale

North 

West

Salford

8

Prevalence of diseases (top 10) – NES & Salford CCGs vs. England average % of population, 

2016/17

Deaths attributable to smoking by region and 

borough, rates per 100,000, 2014-16 (published 

2018)

13

6

7

6

5

3

2

2

2

14

13

8

7

4

4

2

2

2

14

9

8

6

3

2

2

2

13

3

2

3

2

14

8

7

6

4

3

2

2

2

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease

Diabetes mellitus (17+)

Hypertension

Depression (18+)

Coronary heart disease

Asthma

Chronic kidney disease (18+)

Cancer

Stroke and transient ischaemic attack

8

6

6

3
3

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 38



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Avoidable mortality rates are higher than other areas of the country

114

119

118

120

115

100

Rochdale

Bury

Oldham

Salford

National

Local peers4

148

180

168

159

149

122National

Bury CCG

Oldham CCG

HMR CCG

Salford CCG

Local peers 5

221

261

247

248

236

187

Standardised mortality ratios (SMRs)1, 

2017 (pub. 2018)

Mortality rates where deaths 

amenable to good quality care2, 2016 

(pub. 2018)

Mortality rates where deaths 

preventable by public health 

interventions3, 2016 (pub. 2018)

Rates lower than 

England average

Rates higher than 

England average

SOURCE: ONS Deaths Registrations Summary Statistics, 2018 reporting data for 2017; ONS Avoidable mortality in England and Wales: 2018 reporting data for 2016 

1 SMRs give a comparison of mortality in the borough / region of interest against England population as a whole, while allowing for differences in age structure

2 Age-standardised mortality rate per 100,000 where if, in light of medical knowledge and technology available at the time of death, all or most deaths from that cause (subject to age limits if appropriate) could be 

avoided through good quality healthcare 

3 Age-standardised mortality rate per 100,000 where if, in the light of understanding of the determinants of health at the time of death, all or most deaths from that cause (subject to age limits if appropriate) 

could be avoided by public health interventions in the broadest sense

4 Local peers as  unitary authorities/counties/districts for Bolton, Manchester, Stockport, Tameside, Trafford and Wigan 

5 Local peers as CCGs for Bolton, Stockport, Tameside and Glossop, Trafford, Wigan Borough and Manchester CCGs before the merger

9

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 39



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

§ Our population and their needs

§ Out-of-hospital care

§ Acute care activity

§ Acute care performance

§ Acute site profiles

10

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 40



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Summary of this section

§ To address rising population health demands, LCOs are seeking to 

transform out-of-hospital care through a greater focus on prevention of ill 

health, integration and moving care delivery closer to home

§ To deliver these changes, Greater Manchester has been given £450m 

over 5 years as part of its devolution agreement

§ The proportion of CCG budgets spent on primary and community care 

rose by 15% and 7%, respectively, between 2014/15 and 2015/16 – in 

line with LCO plans to shift activity out of hospitals

§ In terms of primary care, there are a few very large GP practices in Salford 

and Oldham

§ Oldham in particular has many more registered patients per permanent 

GP on average than nationally and a slightly higher proportion of GP 

practices rated inadequate than neighbouring CCGs

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 41



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

The proportion of CCG budgets that has been spent

on primary and community care has risen significantly

SOURCE: CCG spend breakdown, NHS Digital, 2017 12

10 10

12 11

9 14

10

10

2014/15 2015/16

41

44
+7% p.a.

NHS Bury CCG

NHS HMR CCG NHS Salford CCG

NHS Oldham CCG

13 13

16
25

18

17

16

17

2014/15 2015/16

72

62

+15% p.a.

Proportion spent on primary care

% of each CCG’s total spend for each year

Proportion spent on community care

% of each CCG’s total spend for each year

Over the same period, the proportion spent on acute care has fallen by 9%

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 42



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

13

There is some variation in quality of care for diabetes mellitus among 

Bury and HMR GPs

100

99

0%

100

96

-3%

100

99

-1%

100

92

-8%

100

98

0%

Coronary heart disease, %Atrial fibrillation, %Stroke and TIA, % Heart failure, %

100

98

-2%

100

96

-6%

100

99

0%

100

92

-9%

100

98

0%

HMR 

CCG

100

98

-2%

SOURCE: QOF 2016/17 published in 2018

100

99

0%

Difference from top 

and bottom quartiles

England mean 

and top quartile

Bury 

CCG

Cancer, %Diabetes mellitus, %

Achievement of quality targets by GP practice, 2016/17 (published 2018)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 43



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

§ Our population and their needs

§ Out-of-hospital care

§ Acute care activity

§ Acute care performance

§ Acute site profiles

14

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 44



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Section summary

§ CCG plans to deliver new models of care to deflect acute activity are 

underway

§ Bury has relatively high elective admission rates, Oldham has high non-

elective activity while HMR has high activity for all types

§ However, over the past five years, admissions across PAHT hospitals –

where NES CCGs commission the great majority of care – have fallen by 

1% p.a. on average

§ Moreover, the proportion of spending on the acute care sector is 

equivalent to or lower than the national average for all NES CCGs and 

this percentage has been falling

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 45



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

16

Bury has high elective admission rates with the 

lowest quartile rate similar to the national median

164

135
134

111

-18%

98

97

85
84 -14%

356

333

280

278

-16%

Difference from top and 

bottom quartiles
CCG Median

CCG top & bottom

quartiles

National median 

and top quartile

SOURCE: HES 206/17 M13 APC and A&E data, c/o NHS Digital

A&E attendances Non-elective IP admissions Elective IP and DC admissions

Bury CCG

Activity by GP practice per 1,000 weighted population, 2016/17

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 46



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

§ Our population and their needs

§ Out-of-hospital care

§ Acute care activity

§ Acute care performance

§ Acute site profiles

17

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 47



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Section summary

§ Services that need to be provided 7 days a week will become even more difficult to 

provide on sites if volumes of activity decrease

§ There is already difficulty ensuring that patients with MI and HF have rapid access to 

specialist staff and procedures at ROH

§ In critical care, there have been notable consultant shortfalls at FGH and NMGH

§ Recent workforce data shows that 7-18% of medical and nursing positions are 

vacant with high levels of agency spend to cover these positions

§ Operationally, 4-hour A&E waiting times performance has been deteriorating and is 

below the national average at ROH, NMGH and Salford, while 18-week RTT at ROH 

and NMGH is lower than the national average and has been declining  

§ Additionally, ROH was recently rated as “requiring improvement” in critical and 

medical care safety, effectiveness and responsiveness

§ Meanwhile, NMGH required improvement in safety and effectiveness of medical 

care and surgery, plus responsiveness for critical care and urgent & emergency care

§ This is all despite PAHT already having low NEL ALoS – among the top 10% nationally

§ In terms of estate, NMGH in particular has high backlog maintenance costs and 

inefficient use of floor area, driven in part by its age

§ In terms of finances, the NCA had an underlying £82m financial gap in 2017/18 that 

is projected to reach over £100m by 2017/18

Focus of today’s discussions

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 48



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

>50% of all bed days at both trusts are occupied by stranded NEL 

patients with length of stay longer than 7 days

National average rate of 57% of total beddays attributed to NEL patients 

with lengths of stay longer than 7 days (25% for more than 30 days)

5%

5%

Emergency

18%

Other

32%

0%

33%

1%

5%

Elective

2%

Other

8%

ElectiveEmergency

3%

3%

2%

33%

20% 2%

4%

24%

1-7 days30+ days 8-30 days

Salford Royal NHS FT Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

SOURCE: HES 2016/17

1 Excluding RA (Regular Attenders) and Other (not recorded type), Paediatrics patients are defined by age 0-18 y.o.

19

Bed days by LOS band and POD1 

Total bed days and % of POD, 2016/17 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 49



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Quality indicators for myocardial infarction 

and heart failure

SOURCE: Myocardial Ischaemia National Audit Project 2017, National Heart Failure Audit 2017, CCG Outcomes Indicators 2018

90.1 94.4 91.7 96.0 96.2

N/A

64.4

34.1
46.8

82.7
69.3

90.1

43.6

2.3

44.9 36.0 42.9
56.9

MI 
process 
metrics

HF 
process 
metrics

HF patients receiving echo, 
%, 2015/16 (pub. 2017)

HF patients receiving input 
from consultant 
cardiologist, %, 2015/16 
(pub. 2017)

nSTEMI patients seen by a 
cardiologist, %, 2015/16 
(pub. 2017)

MI patients who received 
all secondary prevention 
Rx they were eligible for, 
%, 2015/16 (pub. 2017)

Mortality 12 mo after a 
first emergency hospital 
admission for HF in >15y, 
indirectly standardised 
ratio, 2010/11 to 2015/16

England averageBury CCG HMR CCG Salford CCGOldham CCG

HF out-
comes

88.7 94.1 97.5 96.9 91.1

N/A

107.3 103.5 103.6 107.7 100.0

20

Performance

above England average

Performance

below England average

England averageFGH SalfordROH NMGHQuality indicator RI

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 50



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Staffing levels for critical care

SOURCE: Trust ESR data 2018

FGH ROH NMGHSRFT

4.0

2.5

0 0

21

Consultant shortfall for critical care

Number of WTEs, September 2018

No shortfall 

in 

consultants

Shortfall 

against a 1 in 

6 rota

No shortfall 

in 

consultants

Shortfall 

against a 1 in 

8 rota

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 51



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

22

Ambulance activity to each of the NES and Salford sites

1 Defined for Salford, PAHT overall and England average based on HRGs VB01Z-VB08Z

24,084

31,089

25,347

89% 86%

65%

78,335

31,066 26,765

74% 74% 79%

England FGH NMGHROHSRFT

Total 

ambulance 

arrivals, #

Site total 

that are 

classified as 

Resus, very 

urgent or 

urgent

PAHT

Total 

ambulance 

arrivals, #

Trust total 

that are 

classified as 

major or 

standard 

care1

SOURCE: Pennine Acute Trust data, 2018; HES A&E M13 2016/17 data, c/o NHS Digital

Ambulance attendances to each trust, 

2016/17

Ambulance attendances to each site, 

2017/18

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 52



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

NM, in particular, does not use estate as efficiently as other sites, and 

has substantial backlog maintenance costs of nearly £100m

SOURCE: ERIC 17/18 and Capita review of Pennine sites 23

9

18

7

12

0

Unused or under-used 

estate

% of floor area that is 

empty or under-used

16.7

99.6

77.1

13.1 14.9

1 Data for Pennine sites is based on a Capita review for backlog over the next six years; data for Salford site is based on ERIC 17/18 returns

30

50

25 22

0

Age profile - estate that 

is pre-1948

% total estate

Total backlog 

maintenance costs 

18/19 to 22/23

£m1

FGH ROHNMGH RI Salford

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 53



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Both Trusts have underlying financial deficits

SOURCE: Provider and Commissioner model, GM Theme 3

Baseline I&E for PAHT

£000s, 2017/18

-30,834

-61,681

Starting 

position

Recurrent 

starting 

position

30,847

Non-recurrent 

adjustment

Baseline I&E for SRFT

£000s, 2017/18

18,000

-20,680

Recurrent 

starting 

position

Starting 

position

38,680

Non-recurrent 

adjustment

24

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 54



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATION

NES Clinical Services:
Case for Change

DRAFT DOCUMENT

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 55



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

2

Summary case for change

SUBJECT TO UPDATES

Consolidation is one of 
several ways to address 
the fragility of acute 
services

… this is good for the local 
population, but will put 
further pressure on 
already fragile acute 
services …

The local population is 
growing and getting older, 
within a system already 
delivering some poor 
outcomes

To address this, a different 
sort of care will be 
required to that 
historically provided ...

… resulting in decreased 
hospital activity and 
better health outcomes …

▪ The Healthier Together business case (2015) has already recommended that some services, e.g. general surgery, move in order to 
capture the benefits to clinical quality, workforce and financial sustainability from delivering services at scale

▪ Further consolidation may deliver similar improvements in other fragile services
▪ In addition, reductions to length of stay and increasing throughput of theatres, diagnostic services and outpatients will all enable more 

efficient hospital services and allow continued investment in out-of-hospital care

▪ Current acute hospital services are split over five sites – FGH, RI, ROH, Salford Royal Hospital and also NMGH. Declining hospital 
activity will result in subscale services at each site – below levels recommended by national clinical bodies 

▪ Services that need to be provided 7 days a week are particularly difficult to provide on sites where volumes of activity are low – this is 
particularly the case for critical care, which has consultant shortfalls at FGH and NMGH

▪ Lower volume services have been shown to be associated with poorer quality of care, with clinical teams less able to develop and 
maintain their skills, as well as higher costs due to underutilised estate and workforce

▪ There is variation in the quality of care across sites serving the NES population, with ROH and NMGH recently rated as “requiring 
improvement” and patients with MI and HF having relatively poor access to consultant cardiologists at ROH

▪ Operationally, 4-hour A&E waiting times performance has been deteriorating and is below the national average at ROH, NMGH and 
Salford, while 18-week RTT at ROH and NMGH is lower than the national average and has been declining  

▪ In terms of cost, the NCA had an underlying £82m financial gap in 2017/18 projected to reach an underlying deficit of over £100m by 
2022/23 assuming productivity increases of just over 2% are delivered each year

▪ Furthermore, recent workforce data shows that 7-18% of medical and nursing positions are vacant at sites serving NES population, 
with high levels of agency spend to try to cover these positions

▪ NES commissioners are responsible for commissioning care for Oldham, Rochdale and Bury, with most care delivered across 4 sites –
Fairfield General Hospital (FGH), Rochdale Infirmary (RI), North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH) and Royal Oldham Hospital
(ROH) – as well as links to Salford Royal Hospital via the Northern Care Alliance

▪ Collectively, along with Salford CCG, NES CCGs serve a population of ~900,000, which is growing by 0.5% per year with the number of 
people over 70 projected to grow 12% by 2025. This will result in a higher prevalence of long term conditions (LTCs) and frailty

▪ Avoidable mortality rates are already much higher than the England average, while life expectancy is among the lowest nationally

▪ To address rising population health demands, LCOs are seeking to transform out-of-hospital care focused on prevention of ill health, 
integration and moving care delivery closer to home

▪ Greater Manchester has been given £450m over 5 years as part of devolution to invest into delivering these changes in care delivery
▪ Technology will play a key part in supporting many of these new models of care e.g. virtual outpatient clinics or remote monitoring

▪ The clinical evidence base suggests that a greater focus on prevention of ill health and on caring for people with LTCs and frailty in the 
community can significantly reduce the need for acute hospital care resulting in better health status and greater independence

▪ CCG plans to implement new models of care to deflect acute activity are underway, and over the past five years, admissions across 
PAHT hospitals have fallen by 1% p.a. on average while average non-elective LoS is one of the lowest in the country for its case mix 

▪ Currently, 51% of NHS funds available locally are spent on acute care and this percentage has been falling

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 56



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

 Our population and their needs

 Out-of-hospital care

 Acute care activity

 Acute care performance

 Acute site profiles

3

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 57



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Section summary

 NES CCGs commission care for Bury, Rochdale and Oldham; however any 
service change will have implications for Salford and North Manchester, 
as well as vice versa

 The population of the Bury, Rochdale, Oldham and Salford boroughs is 
slightly younger than the England average and is set to increase by 0.5% 
p.a. by 2025 with the over 70’s and 90’s being the fastest growing

 The NES and Salford areas have very high levels of deprivation, with 
particularly high pockets of deprivation in Rochdale and Salford

 Obesity and smoking are particularly prevalent in parts of Rochdale and 
Salford

 Respiratory diseases, especially smoking-related ones, and depression are 
higher than the national average

 Moreover, avoidable mortality rates are higher than other areas of the 
country with life expectancy generally less than surrounding areas apart 
from pockets in Oldham and Bury

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 58



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

The NES serves three boroughs; however any service change will have 
implications for Salford and NM, as well as vice versa NCA boroughs Hospitals

Wigan

Bolton

Bury Rochdale

Oldham

TamesideSalford

Manchester

Stockport

Trafford

Wigan

Standish
With
Langtree

Blackrod

Wigan

WiganOrrell

Billinge & Winstanley
Ashton in

Makerfield

Abram

Golborne

Leigh

Atherton
Hindley

Ince in 
makerfield

Aspull

Horwich

Bolton

Westhoughton Farnworth

Turton

Tottington

Ramsbottom

Bury

Radcliffe
Little
Lever

Kearsley

WorsleyTyldesley

Irlam

Eccles

Urmston Stretford

Sale

Bucklow

Altrincham

Bowdon Hale

Bucklow

Cheadle &
Gatley

Hazel Grove & Bramhall

Stockport

Manchester
Salford

Prestwich

Swinton &
Pendlebury

Middleton

Whitefield

Heywood

Rochdale

Wardle
Littleborough

Milnrow

Crompton

Royton

Chadderton
Oldham

Lees

Failsworth

Droylsden

Ashton-
Under-Lyne

Mossley

Stalybridge
Dukinfield

Hyde

Longden-
daleDenton

Audenshaw

Saddleworth

Bredbury&Romiley

Marple

Royal Oldham
Hospital (ROH)

Rochdale Infirmary (RI)
Fairfield General Hospital (FGH)

North Manchester General
Hospital (NMGH)

Salford Royal 
Hospital (SRFT)

Metropolitan 
country boundary

Metropolitan 
borough boundary

Former district 
boundary

Rural district

Urban district

County borough

Municipal borough

Bury

Stretford

Oldham population:
235,000

Rochdale population:
218,000

Bury population:
190,000

Salford population:
253,000

5SOURCE: ONS 2018-based Sub National Population Projections; catchment area defined as the wards in the Boroughs of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale and Salford

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 59



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

2

12

10

8

0

6

4

14

16

20-
29

Age group

0-9 50-
59

10-
19

30-
39

40-
49

60-
69

70-
79

80-
89

90+

6

The population of the four boroughs is slightly younger than the 
England average England NCA boroughs

Catchment 70+: 12.4%
England 70+: 14.5%

70+ years

2

0

10

8

4

12

6

16

14

Age group

50-
59

30-
39

0-9 10-
19

20-
29

90+40-
49

60-
69

70-
79

80-
89

Catchment 70+: 11.5%
England 70+: 13.2%

Age distribution of population
%, 2018

Projected age distribution of population
%, 2025

SOURCE: ONS 2018-based Sub National Population Projections; catchment area defined as the wards in the Boroughs of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale and Salford

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 60



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Population in the four boroughs is set to increase by 0.5% p.a. by 2025 
with the over 70’s and over 90’s being the fastest growing

231 243

358 356

204 214

97 108
7

7

2018 2025

90+
70-89

<20

50-69

20-49

896
928

+0.5% p.a.

Population projection by age, area in scope, ‘000

1.6%

0.7%

-0.1%

0.7%

1.3%

2018-25 CAGR

SOURCE: ONS 2018-based Sub National Population Projections; catchment area defined as the wards in the Boroughs of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale and Salford 7

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 61



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Almost three-quarters of the total population increase between 2018 
and 2025 will be in the over 60’s

Absolute change in population
‘000’s, 2018 to 2025 by age bands

-1.8

13.7

-10.3

5.6
3.2

-2.2

12.3

6.3
5.1

0.6

30-39 90+0-9 10-19 20-29 50-5940-49 80-8960-69 70-79

Share of ‘18-’25 abs. growth Over 60s

25% 75%

SOURCE: ONS 2018-based Sub National Population Projections; catchment area defined as the wards in the Boroughs of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale and Salford 8

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 62



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

The NES and Salford areas have very high levels of deprivation, with 
particularly high pockets of deprivation in Rochdale and Salford

SOURCE: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government – English indices of deprivation 2015

10

28

23

29

10

Bu
ry

Sa
lfo

rd

Ro
ch

da
le

O
ld

ha
m

N
at

io
na

l

12

32
28

47

10

N
at

io
na

l

Bu
ry

Ro
ch

da
le

O
ld

ha
m

Sa
lfo

rd

9

Overall deprivation1

% of LSOAs in most deprived decile, 2015
Health and disability deprivation
% of LSOAs in most deprived decile, 2015

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 63



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

There is low overlap between those areas with high fertility rates and 
those with low birth weight term babies

SOURCE: PHE local health tool, accessed online in August 2018 [http://www.localhealth.org.uk] 10

Fertility rate, 2011-15 (darker areas indicate 
higher fertility rate per 1,000 female population)

Low birth weight of term babies, 2011-15 
(darker areas indicate higher %)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 64



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Obesity and smoking are particularly prevalent in parts of Rochdale 
and Salford

SOURCE: PHE local health tool, accessed online in August 2018 [http://www.localhealth.org.uk] 11

Obese adults, %, 2011-15 (darker areas indicate 
a higher %)

Regular smokers, %, 2011-15 (darker areas 
indicate higher %)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 65



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Respiratory diseases, especially smoking-related ones, 
and depression are higher than the national average

Bury CCG

All EnglandHMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Salford CCG

SOURCE: QOF 2016/17; NHS Digital Statistics on Smoking - England 2018 reporting data over 2014 to 2016 period

329

398
377

416

331

272

Bury NationalOld-
ham

Roch-
dale

North 
West

Salford

12

Prevalence of diseases (top 10) – NES & Salford CCGs vs. England average % of population, 
2016/17

Deaths attributable to smoking by region and 
borough, rates per 100,000, 2014-16 (published 
2018)

13

6

7

6

5

3

2

2

2

14

13

8

7

4

4

2

2

2

14

9

8

6

3

2

2

2

13

3

2

3

2

14

8

7

6

4

3

2

2

2

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease

Diabetes mellitus (17+)

Hypertension

Depression (18+)

Coronary heart disease

Asthma

Chronic kidney disease (18+)

Cancer

Stroke and transient ischaemic attack

8

6

6

3
3

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 66



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Avoidable mortality rates are higher than other areas of the country

114

119

118

120

115

100

Rochdale

Bury

Oldham

Salford

National

Local peers4

148

180

168

159

149

122National

Bury CCG

Oldham CCG

HMR CCG

Salford CCG

Local peers 5

221

261

247

248

236

187

Standardised mortality ratios (SMRs)1, 
2017 (pub. 2018)

Mortality rates where deaths 
amenable to good quality care2, 2016 
(pub. 2018)

Mortality rates where deaths 
preventable by public health 
interventions3, 2016 (pub. 2018)

Rates lower than 
England average

Rates higher than 
England average

SOURCE: ONS Deaths Registrations Summary Statistics, 2018 reporting data for 2017; ONS Avoidable mortality in England and Wales: 2018 reporting data for 2016 

1 SMRs give a comparison of mortality in the borough / region of interest against England population as a whole, while allowing for differences in age structure
2 Age-standardised mortality rate per 100,000 where if, in light of medical knowledge and technology available at the time of death, all or most deaths from that cause (subject to age limits if appropriate) could be 
avoided through good quality healthcare 
3 Age-standardised mortality rate per 100,000 where if, in the light of understanding of the determinants of health at the time of death, all or most deaths from that cause (subject to age limits if appropriate) 
could be avoided by public health interventions in the broadest sense
4 Local peers as  unitary authorities/counties/districts for Bolton, Manchester, Stockport, Tameside, Trafford and Wigan 
5 Local peers as CCGs for Bolton, Stockport, Tameside and Glossop, Trafford, Wigan Borough and Manchester CCGs before the merger

13

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 67



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Life expectancy at birth for males, 2011-15
(lighter colour is associated with lower life expectancy)

Life expectancy at birth for females, 2011-15
(lighter colour is associated with lower life expectancy)

Life expectancy is considerably less than surrounding areas and the 
England average apart from parts of Oldham and Bury

SOURCE: PHE local health tool, accessed online in August 2018 [http://www.localhealth.org.uk] 14

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 68



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

 Our population and their needs

 Out-of-hospital care

 Acute care activity

 Acute care performance

 Acute site profiles

15

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 69



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Summary of this section

 To address rising population health demands, LCOs are seeking to 
transform out-of-hospital care through a greater focus on prevention of ill 
health, integration and moving care delivery closer to home

 To deliver these changes, Greater Manchester has been given £450m 
over 5 years as part of its devolution agreement

 The proportion of CCG budgets spent on primary and community care 
rose by 15% and 7%, respectively, between 2014/15 and 2015/16 – in 
line with LCO plans to shift activity out of hospitals

 In terms of primary care, there are a few very large GP practices in Salford 
and Oldham

 Oldham in particular has many more registered patients per permanent 
GP on average than nationally and a slightly higher proportion of GP 
practices rated inadequate than neighbouring CCGs

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 70



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

The proportion of CCG budgets that has been spent
on primary and community care has risen significantly

SOURCE: CCG spend breakdown, NHS Digital, 2017 17

10 10

12 11

9 14

10
10

2014/15 2015/16

41
44

+7% p.a.

NHS Bury CCG

NHS HMR CCG NHS Salford CCG

NHS Oldham CCG

13 13

16
25

18

17

16

17

2014/15 2015/16

72

62

+15% p.a.

Proportion spent on primary care
% of each CCG’s total spend for each year

Proportion spent on community care
% of each CCG’s total spend for each year

Over the same period, the proportion spent on acute care has fallen by 9%

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 71



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Current list size and GP provision by GP practice (1/2)

SOURCE: General and Personal Medical Services, March 2018, NHS Digital; Patient List Sizes, March 2018, NHS Digital

12,927

2,141

8

1

9

1

Number of registered patients per practice, 2018
Number of actual GPs (headcount) per practice excluding 
registrars, retainers and locums, 2018

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

12,574

1,641
ND – data not determined for this GP practice 

ND

ND
ND
ND

ND

ND

ND
ND

18

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 72



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

9

2

Current list size and GP provision by GP practice (2/2)

16,769

1,210
16,426

1,091

9

2

Oldham 
CCG

Salford
CCG

Number of registered patients per practice, 2018
Number of actual GPs (headcount) per practice excluding 
registrars, retainers and locums, 2018

SOURCE: General and Personal Medical Services, March 2018, NHS Digital; Patient List Sizes, March 2018, NHS Digital

ND – data not determined for this GP practice

ND

ND

ND

ND
ND
NDND

ND

ND

ND

ND

19

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 73



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Oldham in particular has many more registered patients per 
permanent GP on average than nationally or in other GM CCGs 

1 Excludes registrars, retainers and locums. Practices where staff numbers were not determined are excluded
2 Local peers as CCGs for Bolton, Stockport, Tameside and Glossop, Trafford, Wigan Borough and Manchester CCGs before the merger

SOURCE: General and Personal Medical Services, March 2018, NHS Digital; Patient List Sizes, March 2018, NHS Digital

2,256 2,191

2,681

1,914
2,035 1,978

HMR CCG 
average

Bury CCG 
average

Salford CCG 
average

England 
average

Oldham CCG 
average

Local peers2

average  

Patients to permanent GPs at practice level1

Number of registered patients per actual GP (headcount), 2018

20

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 74



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Oldham CCG has a slightly higher proportion of GP practices rated 
inadequate than neighbouring CCGs

27

Outstanding

Inadequate

2

0 0%

Requires
improvement

Good

1

7%

90%

3%

Bury CCG HMR CCG Salford CCG All England CCGsOldham CCG

SOURCE: CQC State of Care 2017

31

6%

0

0

2

0%

0%

94%

3

30

2 6%

1

8%

83%

3%

41

1 2%

3

2

87%

6%

4%

6,119 89%

382

303

108 2%

6%

4%

21

GP practice ratings, % of GP practices in each CCG, 2017

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 75



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

22

There is some variation in quality of care for diabetes mellitus among 
Bury and HMR GPs

100
99

0%

100

96

-3%

100
99

-1%

100

92

-8%

100
98

0%

Coronary heart disease, %Atrial fibrillation, %Stroke and TIA, % Heart failure, %

100

98

-2%

100

96

-6%

100
99

0%

100

92

-9%

100
98

0%

HMR 
CCG

100

98

-2%

SOURCE: QOF 2016/17 published in 2018

100
99

0%

Difference from top 
and bottom quartiles

England mean 
and top quartile

Bury 
CCG

Cancer, %Diabetes mellitus, %

Achievement of quality targets by GP practice, 2016/17 (published 2018)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 76



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

23

There is some variation in quality, particularly among Salford GPs for 
CHD and diabetes mellitus

Old-
ham 
CCG

Salford 
CCG

100

98

-4%

100
99

0%

100

96

-6%

100
100

0%

100

92

-12%

100

98

0%

100

98

-8%

100

96

-10%

100
99

-8%

100

92

-22%

100
98

0%

100
99

0%

Coronary heart disease, %Atrial fibrillation, %Stroke and TIA, % Cancer, %Heart failure, % Diabetes mellitus, %

SOURCE: QOF 2016/17 published in 2018

Difference from top 
and bottom quartiles

England mean 
and top quartile

Achievement of quality targets by GP practice, 2016/17 (published 2018)

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 77



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

 Our population and their needs

 Out-of-hospital care

 Acute care activity

 Acute care performance

 Acute site profiles

24

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 78



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Section summary

 CCG plans to deliver new models of care to deflect acute activity are 
underway

 Bury has relatively high elective admission rates, Oldham has high non-
elective activity while HMR has high activity for all types

 However, over the past five years, admissions across PAHT hospitals –
where NES CCGs commission the great majority of care – have fallen by 
1% p.a. on average

 Moreover, the proportion of spending on the acute care sector is 
equivalent to or lower than the national average for all NES CCGs and 
this percentage has been falling

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 79



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

26

Bury has high elective admission rates with the 
lowest quartile rate similar to the national median

164

135
134

111

-18%

98

97

85
84 -14%

356

333

280

278

-16%

Difference from top and 
bottom quartiles CCG Median

CCG top & bottom
quartiles

National median 
and top quartile

SOURCE: HES 206/17 M13 APC and A&E data, c/o NHS Digital

A&E attendances Non-elective IP admissions Elective IP and DC admissions

Bury CCG

Activity by GP practice per 1,000 weighted population, 2016/17

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 80



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

27

Oldham has high non-elective / emergency 
activity and high variation in elective activity

134
132

111

96

-27%

108

97

91

85

-15%

417

356

338

278

-19%

Difference from top and 
bottom quartiles CCG Median

CCG top & bottom
quartiles

National median 
and top quartile

SOURCE: HES 206/17 M13 APC and A&E data, c/o NHS Digital

Elective IP and DC admissionsA&E attendances Non-elective IP admissions

Oldham CCG

Activity by GP practice per 1,000 weighted population, 2016/17

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 81



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

28

HMR has high levels of all activity with 
particulary high variation in A&E attendances

145

134

119

111

-18%

101

97

90

85

-11%

487

356

337

309

278
-29%

Difference from top and 
bottom quartiles CCG Median

CCG top & bottom
quartiles

National median 
and top quartile

SOURCE: HES 206/17 M13 APC and A&E data, c/o NHS Digital

Elective IP and DC admissionsA&E attendances Non-elective IP admissions

HMR CCG

Activity by GP practice per 1,000 weighted population, 2016/17

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 82



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Royal Oldham
Hospital (ROH)
563 beds1

Rochdale
Infirmary (RI) 

67 beds1

Fairfield General 
Hospital (FGH) 
282 beds1

Salford Royal Hospital (SRFT)
824 beds1

North Manchester 
General Hospital (NMGH)
507 beds1

Activity by POD
Number of attendances 
/admissions, 2017/18

Activity by POD
Number of attendances 
/admissions, 2017/18

Activity by POD
Number of attendances 
/admissions, 2017/18

Activity by POD
Number of attendances 
/admissions, 2017/18

Activity by POD
Number of attendances 
/admissions, 2017/18

There are four sites within the NCA with some acute care for the NES 
commissioned at NMGH

117k

ELOP A&E

71k

DC NEL

15k 2k
35k

52k

NELOP UC DC

26k

EL

138k

<1k 3k

107k 61k17k

OP A&E

204k

DC EL NEL

5k

OP ELA&E NELDC

557k

101k 48k 11k 74k

13k
102k

OP ELDCA&E NEL

227k

5k 45k

SOURCE: PLICS data 2017/18

1 Bed numbers include acute, maternity, paediatric and daycase beds
OP are outpatient attendances; IP are inpatient admissions excluding daycase episodes; A&E and UC are A&E and urgent care attendances, respectively

29

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 83



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Emergency hospital admissions, all causes, 2011/12 to 
2015/16 standardised admission ratio (darker areas 
indicate more admissions)

Elective hospital admissions, all causes, 2011/12 to 
2015/16 standardised admission ratio (darker areas 
indicate more admissions)

SOURCE: PHE local health tool, accessed online in August 2018 [http://www.localhealth.org.uk] 

Emergency and elective hospital admissions are slightly higher than 
the national average

30

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 84



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

200,136 201,504 189,712 186,980 193,850

2013/14 2015/162014/15 2017/182016/17

-1% p.a.

86,871 88,093
79,193 79,420

89,555

2013/14 2017/182015/162014/15 2016/17

+1% p.a.

680,742 701,884 680,744 682,914 686,613

2014/15 2017/182015/16 2016/172013/14

0% p.a.

307,593 317,354 320,543 319,120 331,685

2016/172013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2017/18

+2% p.a.

Total Admissions1 Emergency Admissions1

Planned Outpatient Attendances A&E Attendances 

Total admissions at PAHT have fallen with some inter-year fluctuations
Yearly activity at PAHT

SOURCE: HES Online

1 Includes daycase episodes

31

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 85



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Total Admissions1 Emergency Admissions1

Planned Outpatient Attendances A&E Attendances 

Yearly activity at SRFT

80,856 85,274 90,460 93,195 96,535

2013/14 2015/162014/15 2016/17 2017/18

+5% p.a.

31,793 34,210 36,764 36,465 38,090

2016/172014/152013/14 2015/16 2017/18

+5% p.a.

367,215 403,840 450,901 500,577
556,630

2017/182016/172014/15 2015/162013/14

+11% p.a.

87,976 92,527 100,202 101,585 100,470

2017/182014/15 2015/16 2016/172013/14

+3% p.a.

SRFT has seen growth across all activity, especially OP attendances

SOURCE: HES Online

1 Includes daycase episodes

32

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 86



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Acute care spending is mostly lower than the national average but not 
as low as the lowest quartile in the country

1 Local peers as CCGs for Bolton, Stockport, Tameside and Glossop, Trafford, Wigan Borough and Manchester CCGs before the merger

SOURCE: CCG spend breakdown, NHS Digital, 2017

52.6 53.0

45.3

51.9 54.3 51.9 53.0

42.6

Acute care sector spend
Percentage of total CCG spend that is spent on general and acute care

Local 
peers1 1st

quartile HMR CCGBury CCG
Salford
CCG

Oldham 
CCG

Local 
peers1

average  

England 
1st 
quartile 

England 
average  

CCG acute care spend
below England average

CCG acute care spend
above England average

Average =
50.7

33

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 87



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

 Our population and their needs

 Out-of-hospital care

 Acute care activity

 Acute care performance

 Acute site profiles

34

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 88



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Section summary
 Services that need to be provided 7 days a week will become even more difficult to 

provide on sites if volumes of activity decrease
 There is already difficulty ensuring that patients with MI and HF have rapid access to 

specialist staff and procedures at ROH
 In critical care, there have been notable consultant shortfalls at FGH and NMGH
 Recent workforce data shows that 7-18% of medical and nursing positions are 

vacant with high levels of agency spend to cover these positions
 Operationally, 4-hour A&E waiting times performance has been deteriorating and is 

below the national average at ROH, NMGH and Salford, while 18-week RTT at ROH 
and NMGH is lower than the national average and has been declining  

 Additionally, ROH was recently rated as “requiring improvement” in critical and 
medical care safety, effectiveness and responsiveness

 Meanwhile, NMGH required improvement in safety and effectiveness of medical 
care and surgery, plus responsiveness for critical care and urgent & emergency care

 This is all despite PAHT already having low NEL ALoS – among the top 10% nationally
 In terms of estate, NMGH in particular has high backlog maintenance costs and 

inefficient use of floor area, driven in part by its age
 In terms of finances, the NCA had an underlying £82m financial gap in 2017/18 that 

is projected to reach over £100m by 2017/18

Focus of today’s discussionsD
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 89



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

36

HRG codes can be used to categorise A&E visits into major, standard 
and minor treatments or investigations

SOURCE: HRG reference data

Category Typical treatmentTypical investigation Category combination
Typical 
investigation

M
AJO

R

Any 

3

2

STAN
DARD

2

1

M
IN

O
R

1

None 

Typical 
treatment

5

1-4

4

1-3

3-4

1-2

None 

HRG category results depend on what investigations or treatments actually take place in A&E as opposed 
to other units or departments and how well standards of care are adhered to, and not just acuity

4

5

1

2

3
▪ Ultrasound
▪ MRI
▪ CT

▪ Plain X-ray 
▪ Cross-match
▪ Bacteriology

▪ ECG
▪ Biochemistry
▪ Urine dip

▪ Remove sutures
▪ Eye drops
▪ Advice/guidance 

▪ Wound closure with steristrips
▪ Physio for falls prevention
▪ Local anaesthetic 

▪ Primary sutures
▪ Intramuscular injection
▪ Occupational therapy assessment

▪ General anaesthetic 
▪ Manipulation of limb fracture
▪ External pacing

▪ CPR
▪ Thrombolysis

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 90



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

37

A higher proportion of A&E attendances at PAHT and SRFT involve 
Standard and Minor investigations / treatments, respectively, than the 
national average

SOURCE: A&E HES data 2016/17

49 57 50

46 31 38

12 12

100% =

SRFT

5

PAHT

Minor

Standard  

National

Major
319k 101k 2m

HRG category results depend on what investigations or treatments actually take place in A&E as opposed 
to other units or departments and how well standards of care are adhered to, and not just acuity

A&E attendances by investigation / treatment category vs nationally
A&E attendances (% of total), 2016/17

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 91



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Emergency bed days , bed days per 1,000 weighted population quarterly

Emergency bed days rose 9% per quarter in 
16/17 Q1 to Q3 in Salford

SOURCE: CCG improvement and assessment framework 2017/18 38

450

500

550

0

600

17-18 Q216-17 Q1 16-17 Q315-16 Q4 16-17 Q2 16-17 Q4 17-18 Q1 17-18 Q3

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Salford CCG

Local peers1

England average

1 Local peers as CCGs for Bolton, Stockport, Tameside and Glossop, Trafford, Wigan Borough and Manchester CCG

9% per 
quarter

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 92



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Case-mix adjusted average length of stay is relatively low at PAHT but 
relatively high at SRFT

30 21 4 5 6 7 8 9610 42 3 5 7

▪ Case-mix 
adjustment1

separates Trust 
performance 
from the 
complexity of 
the case-mix

▪ The ALoS for all 
other Trusts is 
calculated in the 
scenario in 
which all other 
Trusts had the 
same case-mix 
of HRGs as PAHT 
or as SRFT

Case-mix adjusted non-elective1 ALoS, SRFT, 
vs non-specialist acute Trusts in England 
Days, 2016/17

Median: 5.8 days

Top quartile: 5.3 
days

Top decile: 4.9 days

SRFT: 6.1 days

Case-mix adjusted non-elective1 ALoS, PAHT
vs non-specialist acute Trusts in England, 
Days, 2016/17

Median: 4.7 days

Top quartile: 4.4 
days

Top decile: 4.1 
days

PAHT: 4.0 days

PAHT 

SRFT

SOURCE: HES 2016/17 APC datset M13, c/o NHS Digital

1 Adjusted by taking into account the average length of stay by HRG, in each service line, at all acute NHS Trusts in England
2 Excluding maternity specialty and for acute hospitals only
3 Case-mix adjustment may not account for complexity of specialist services delivered at Salford

39

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 93



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

General and acute bed occupancy is consistently higher at 
SRFT than at PAHT sites

85

90

95

100

17/18 Q317/18 Q1 17/18 Q2 17/18 Q4 18/19 Q1

PAHT

SRFT

National average

40SOURCE: NHS website – Bed Availability and Occupancy statistics 2017/18

General & Acute Bed Occupancy Rates, %

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 94



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Maternity bed occupancy at PAHT has been historically
higher than the national average but has recently dipped

SOURCE: NHS website – Bed Availability and Occupancy statistics 2017/18

60

50

55

80

70

65

75

17/18 Q1 17/18 Q2 17/18 Q3 17/18 Q4 18/19 Q1

PAHT

National average

41

Maternity Bed Occupancy Rates, %

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 95



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

>50% of all bed days at both trusts are occupied by stranded NEL 
patients with length of stay longer than 7 days

National average rate of 57% of total beddays attributed to NEL patients 
with lengths of stay longer than 7 days (25% for more than 30 days)

5%

5%

Emergency

18%

Other

32%

0%

33%

1%

5%

Elective

2%

Other

8%

ElectiveEmergency

3%

3%

2%

33%

20% 2%

4%
24%

1-7 days30+ days 8-30 days

Salford Royal NHS FT Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

SOURCE: HES 2016/17

1 Excluding RA (Regular Attenders) and Other (not recorded type), Paediatrics patients are defined by age 0-18 y.o.

42

Bed days by LOS band and POD1 
Total bed days and % of POD, 2016/17 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 96



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

>70% of all bed days for people aged 65+ are occupied by stranded NEL 
patients with length of stay longer than 7 days

Emergency

16%

34%

37%

3%

4%

3%

Elective

1%

Other

1%

0%
Emergency

19%

28%

42%

2%

Other

3%

4%

Elective

1%

0%

8%

8-30 days30+ days 1-7 days

SOURCE: HES 2016/17

1 Excluding RA (Regular Attenders) and Other (not recorded type), Paediatrics patients are defined by age 0-18 y.o.

National average rate of 71% of total beddays attributed to NEL patients 
with lengths of stay longer than 7 days (31% for more than 30 days)

Salford Royal NHS FT Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

43

Bed days by LOS band and POD1 
Total bed days and % of POD, 2016/17 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 97



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

On average, 1,141 and 785 bed days are lost at PAHT and SRFT, 
respectively, every month due to DTOCs

599

288
396

589

373

359

486

548

664
556

740

488 556 567
472 417

815

701

540

538

640
524 717

972

0 7

May-
17

Apr-
17

Jun-
17

Sep-
17

0
Jul-17

1,092

4

Aug-
17

24 31

Oct-
17

37

Nov-
17

Dec-
17

1

882

647

Jan-
18

16

Feb-
18

1,205

25

Mar-
18

00

972

1,281

1,483

1,137

1,311

1,063

1,203

1,414

73 87 42 45

243

50

215

274 241 292 346
344

235

339

259 216 262
149

510

711

612

440

654

423

449
365

534
458

483

Mar-
18

Sep-
17

Apr-
17

May-
17

7

812

Jun-
17

Jul-17 Feb-
18

Aug-
17

21

Oct-
17

Nov-
17

90

734

Jan-
18

12 129

1,058

940

774

1,007

705

582
633

800

732

644

Dec-
17

Both

NHS

Social

Average = 785
Average = 1,141

SOURCE: HES Online 2018 44

Bed days lost at PAHT due to DTOCs by cause
Bed days, 2017/18

Bed days lost at SRFT due to DTOCs by cause
Bed days, 2017/18

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 98



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Both Bury and Rochdale sites were rated good by the 
CQC while ROH and NMGH required improvement

InadequateRequires improvement

GoodOutstanding

SOURCE: CQC website

Fairfield General Hospital, Bury
Latest inspection in Oct 2017, reported Feb 2018

Rochdale Infirmary, Rochdale
Latest inspection in Feb 2016, reported Aug 2016 

Overall
Good

Overall
Good

Safe Requires improvement Safe Good

Caring Good Caring Good

Responsive Good Responsive Good

Effective Good Effective Good

Well-led Good Well-led Good

Royal Oldham Hospital, Oldham
Latest inspection in Oct 2017, reported Feb 2018

Overall
Requires
Improve-
ment

Safe Requires improvement 

Caring Good

Responsive Requires improvement 

Effective Requires improvement 

Well-led Requires improvement 

North Manchester General Hospital, Manchester
Latest inspection in Oct 2017, reported Feb 2018

Overall
Requires
Improve-
ment

Safe Requires improvement 

Caring Good

Responsive Requires improvement 

Effective Requires improvement 

Well-led Requires improvement 

45

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 99



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Fairfield scored good or outstanding for most services with critical care 
and end of life care not included in the latest inspection

Symbol

Same Up one rating Up two rating Down one ratingRating change since last inspection Down two rating

SOURCE: CQC website

Urgent and 
emergency 
services

Medical care 
(including older 
people’s care)

Surgery

Critical care

End of life care

Outpatient and 
Diagnostic 
imaging

Overall

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Outstanding

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Requires
improvement

Feb 2018

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Good

Good

Good

Good

N/A

Good

Requires
improvement

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires
improvement

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires
improvement

Outstanding

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement

Outstanding

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall
Good GoodGood

46

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 100



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Rochdale is awaiting inspection, with the previous one from 2016 
noting the need to improve urgent and emergency care

SOURCE: CQC website

Symbol

Same Up one rating Up two rating Down one ratingRating change since last inspection Down two rating

Urgent and 
emergency 
services

Medical care 
(including older 
people’s care)

Surgery

Overall

Outpatient and 
Diagnostic 
imaging

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires
improvement

Good

Good

Good

Good

Aug 2016

Requires
improvement

Good

Good

Good

Good

Aug 2016 Aug 2016

Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016

Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016

Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016

Requires
improvement

Good

Good

Good

Good

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016

Aug 2016Aug 2016Aug 2016

N/A

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

47

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 101



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

ROH required improvement in many service areas including critical and 
medical care, plus care for children and young people

Symbol

Same Up one rating Up two rating Down one ratingRating change since last inspection Down two rating

SOURCE: CQC website

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires improvement

Good

Good

Requires improvement

Good

Good

Good

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Good

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Good

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Feb 2018

Good

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Good

Good Good Good

Requires improvementRequires improvement

Good Requires improvement Requires improvement

Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018

Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018

Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018

Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018Feb 2018Feb 2018Feb 2018Feb 2018Feb 2018

Good

Good

Good

Requires improvement Requires improvement Requires improvementRequires improvementRequires improvement

Requires improvement
N/A

Good Good

Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Feb 2018Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Urgent and 
emergency services

Medical care 
(including older 
people’s care)

Surgery

Critical care

End of life care

Outpatient and 
Diagnostic imaging

Overall

Maternity

Services for children 
and young people

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

48

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 102



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

NMGH required improvement in several service areas, especially in 
medical care and surgery

SOURCE: CQC website

Symbol

Same Up one rating Up two rating Down one ratingRating change since last inspection Down two rating

Urgent and 
emergency services

Medical care 
(including older 
people’s care)

Surgery

Critical care

End of life care

Outpatient and 
Diagnostic imaging

Overall

Maternity

Services for children 
and young people

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires improvement

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires improvement

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Good

Good

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Good

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Good

Feb 2018

Good

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Requires improvement

Good

Good Good Good

GoodRequires improvement

Good Requires improvement Requires improvement

Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018

Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018

Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018 Feb 2018

Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016 Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Feb 2018

Aug 2016Aug 2016Aug 2016Aug 2016Aug 2016Aug 2016

Good

Good

Good

Requires improvement Good Requires improvementRequires improvementRequires improvement

Good
N/A

Good Good

Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Feb 2018Feb 2018

Aug 2016

Feb 2018

49

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 103



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Royal Salford was recently rated outstanding by the CQC with kind, 
caring staff and highly responsive services

SOURCE: CQC website

Salford Royal Hospital, Salford
Latest inspection in Apr 2018, reported Aug 2018

Overview

Overall
Outstanding

Safe Good

Caring Outstanding

Responsive Outstanding

Effective Good Well-led Good

Inadequate Requires improvement Good Outstanding

Specific service areas

Urgent and emergency 
services

Medical care (including 
older people’s care)

Surgery

Critical care

End of life care

Outpatients

Overall

Services for children 
and young people

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

N/A

Good

Aug 2018
Good

Aug 2018
Good

Aug 2018
Good

Aug 2018
Good

Mar 2015
Good

Mar 2015

Good

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Good

Good

Aug 2018
Good

Mar 2015
Good

Mar 2015

Good

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018
Outstanding

Aug 2018
Good

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

Good

Good

Mar 2015
Outstanding

Mar 2015

Outstanding

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

Good

Good

Aug 2018
Good

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

Outstanding

Good

Mar 2015
Outstanding

Mar 2015

Outstanding

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Good

Good

Aug 2018
Good

Aug 2018
Requires improvement

Mar 2015
Outstanding

Mar 2015

Good

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

Good

Aug 2018

Good

Good

Aug 2018
Good

Aug 2018
Good

Mar 2015
Outstanding

Mar 2015

Outstanding

Aug 2018

Symbol

Same Up one rating Up two rating Down one ratingRating change since last inspection Down two rating

50

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 104



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Quality indicators for stroke

FGH Salford

77.2
56.4 52.6

Process 
metrics

Stroke patients seen by 
specialist consultant within 
24 h, %, 2016/17 

Out-
comes

Mortality within 30 days of 
hospital admission for 
stroke, directly standard-
ised ratio, 2013/14 to 
2016/17

SOURCE: Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme 2017, CCG Outcomes Indicators 2018

Stroke patients having a 
brain scan within 1 h, %, 
2016/17 

Eligible stroke patients 
given thrombolysis, %, 
2016/17 

England 
averageBury CCG HMR CCG Salford CCG

Oldham 
CCG

Local peers 
average

95.3 97.5
82.9

92.5 97.8 87.4

0.97 1.10
1.33

0.95 1.00 1.03

England averageQuality indicator

51

Performance
above England average

Performance
below England average

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 105



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Quality indicators for myocardial infarction 
and heart failure

SOURCE: Myocardial Ischaemia National Audit Project 2017, National Heart Failure Audit 2017, CCG Outcomes Indicators 2018

90.1 94.4 91.7 96.0 96.2

N/A

64.4
34.1 46.8

82.7 69.3
90.1

43.6
2.3

44.9 36.0 42.9 56.9

MI 
process 
metrics

HF 
process 
metrics

HF patients receiving echo, 
%, 2015/16 (pub. 2017)

HF patients receiving input 
from consultant 
cardiologist, %, 2015/16 
(pub. 2017)

nSTEMI patients seen by a 
cardiologist, %, 2015/16 
(pub. 2017)

MI patients who received 
all secondary prevention 
Rx they were eligible for, 
%, 2015/16 (pub. 2017)

Mortality 12 mo after a 
first emergency hospital 
admission for HF in >15y, 
indirectly standardised 
ratio, 2010/11 to 2015/16

England averageBury CCG HMR CCG Salford CCGOldham CCG

HF out-
comes

88.7 94.1 97.5 96.9 91.1

N/A

107.3 103.5 103.6 107.7 100.0

52

Performance
above England average

Performance
below England average

England averageFGH SalfordROH NMGHQuality indicator RI

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 106



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Quality indicators for diabetes mellitus

SOURCE: National Diabetes Inpatient Audit 2018, CCG Outcomes Indicators 2018

England averageFGH SalfordROH

10.0 17.6
35.7

9.6 18.5

Process 
metrics

NMGH

66.7 75.0
30.0 33.3

59.3

Out-
comes

Diabetes patients with 
inpatient glucose 
management error, %, 
2017 (pub. 2018)

Diabetes with inpatient 
medication error, %, 2017 
(pub. 2018)

Diabetes with inpatient 
prescription error, %, 2017 
(pub. 2018)

Diabetes patients with foot 
disease admitted and seen 
by MDT within 24 h, %, 
2017 (pub. 2018)

Diabetes patients with 
inpatient insulin error, %, 
2017 (pub. 2018)

Diabetes patients who get 
MI, stroke, or stage CKD, 
indirectly standardised 
ratio, 2011/12 to 2015/16

13.3
27.5

48.6

15.4
31.3

6.7
19.6 22.9

7.7
19.0

10.0 15.7
31.4

3.8
18.6

223.5 259.9
130.1 139.0 100.0

Quality indicator

53

Performance
above England average

Performance
below England average

England averageFGH Oldham CCGHMR CCG Salford CCG

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 107



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Quality indicators for adult critical care (1/2)

SOURCE: ICNARC Annual Quality Report 2018 for adult critical care

Duration from 
reported time fully 
ready for discharge to 
time of discharge ≤4 
h, % of eligible 
admissions1, 2017/18

Unplanned 
readmissions within 
48 h, % of eligible 
admissions1, 2017/18

England 
averageFGH ICU/HDU ROH HDU

Salford Critical 
Care 
DirectorateROH ITU

NMGH Critical 
Care Ward

1 Reported for unit survivors discharged to a ward in the same hospital (or direct to home)

57.6

28.4
32.5

45.1

20.4

40.8

Quality indicator

Performance
above England average

Trust performance
below England average

54

1.4
1.6

0.9

1.4

2.5

1.1

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 108



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

55

Quality indicators for adult critical care (2/2)

SOURCE: ICNARC Annual Quality Report 2018 for adult critical care

1 Salford recently started admitted patients with devastating brain injuries, which are not explicitly risk-adjusted for

NMGH Critical 
Care Ward

ROH HDU

ROH ITU

Salford Critical 
Care Directorate1

Risk-adjusted acute hospital mortality rate
Ratio of actual to expected mortality rate

FGH ICU/HDU

1.8

1.2

0.8

1.0

1.4

1.6

All units Similar units

0.8

1.8

1.0

1.2

1.6

1.4

1.6

0.8

1.2

1.0

1.4

1.8

0.8

1.2

1.0

1.4

1.6

1.8

2013-14 2016-172014-15 2015-16 2017-18

1.6

0.8

1.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

FGHROH

Salford RoyalNMGH D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 109



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Quality indicators for bowel cancer

SOURCE: National Bowel Cancer Audit 2017

7.0
8.6 8.7

5.8

9.8
7.4Bowel Cancer Adjusted 30-day 

unplanned readmission %, 
2015/16 (pub. 2017)

Bowel Cancer Adjusted 90-day 
mortality %, 2015/16 (pub. 
2017)

Underwent major 
urgent/emergency surgery, %, 
2015/16 (pub. 2017)

Bowel Cancer LoS  > 5 days %, 
2015/16 (pub. 2017)

PAHT Peer average

Peer top-
performing 
quartile

England 
average

England  top-
performing 
quartileSRFT

Trust performance
above England average

Trust performance
below England average

2.1 1.9 2.4
1.3

3.6
2.3

19.0

11.0
16.9

13.5 16.0
12.0

71.0 80.0 75.0 73.5 70.0 64.0

1 Local peers as Bolton; Manchester; Stockport; Tameside & Glossop; Wrightington, Wigan & Leigh Trusts

Quality indicator

56

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 110



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

A&E waiting times within 4 hours, 
% monthly by Trust 2017/18 

A&E waiting times are below the national 95% 
target and trending down 

SOURCE: NHSE A&E Unify2 data collection – MSitAE 2018, HSJ Intelligence 2018

80

95

85

0

90

100

Oct 17 Mar 18Jun 17 Jul 17May 17Apr 17 Aug 17 Sep 17 Nov 17 Dec 17 Jan 18 Feb 18

National average

National target

PAHT

SRFT

57

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 111



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

A&E waiting times within 4 hours, 
% monthly by CO 2017/18

For Pennine, the deteriorating performance is driven 
by waiting times at NMGH and ROH

SOURCE: NHSE A&E Unify2 data collection – MSitAE 2018, HSJ Intelligence 2018

75

0

80

70

85

90

95

100

Dec 17Sep 17Aug 17Apr 17 May 17 Jun 17 Jul 17 Oct 17 Nov 17 Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18

58

Salford

Bury & Rochdale

Oldham

North Manchester

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 112



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

RTT waiting times within 18 weeks for incomplete pathways, 
% monthly by Trust 2017/18

RTT waiting times within 18 weeks are below the 
national average at PAHT

SOURCE: NHSE A&E Unify2 data collection – MSitAE 2018, HSJ Intelligence 2018

88.0

91.0

0

87.5

88.5

93.5

90.0

89.0

90.5

91.5

89.5

92.0

92.5

93.0

94.0

Aug 17Jun 17 Jul 17 Jan 18Apr 17 May 17 Sep 17 Nov 17 Dec 17 Feb 18 Mar 18Oct 17

59

National average PAHT

National target SRFT

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 113



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

RTT waiting times within 18 weeks for incomplete pathways, 
% monthly by CO 2017/18

This is primarily driven by declining RTT waiting time 
performance at NMGH and ROH

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack 60

Nov 17

90%

82%

Jul 17 Sep 17 Jan 18 Mar 18May 17 Jul 18
80%

86%

81%

83%

84%

85%

87%

93%

88%

89%

91%

92%

94%

May 18

Salford

Bury&Rochdale

North Manchester

Oldham

NMGH reported 11 x 
52-week breaches: 
 10 x Oral
 1 x Max-Fac

ROH reported 2 x 52-
week breaches both in 
General Surgery

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 114



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Diagnostic testing within 6 weeks of request, 
% monthly by CO 2017/18

Six-week diagnostic performance varies considerably from
month to month with Salford CO consistently below the target 

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack 61

May 17 Jul 17 Nov 17Sep 17

95%

Jan 18 Mar 18

100%

May 18 Jul 18
80%

85%

90%

Oldham

Bury&Rochdale

Salford

North Manchester

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 115



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Cancer treatment waiting times after urgent GP referral within 62 days, 
% monthly by Trust 2017/18

Cancer treatment waiting times are better than the 
national average and the national target at SRFT

SOURCE: NHSE A&E Unify2 data collection – MSitAE 2018, HSJ Intelligence 2018

88

76

80

84

82

94

86

78

90

92

0
Nov 17May 17 Dec 17 Feb 18Apr 17 Jun 17 Jul 17 Sep 17 Oct 17 Jan 18 Mar 18Aug 17

62

National average

National target

PAHT

SRFT

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 116



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Cancer treatment waiting times after urgent GP referral within 62 days, 
% monthly by CO 2017/18

Both Oldham and Bury & Rochdale COs have seen declining
cancer treatment waiting time performance

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack 63

Nov 17

95%

May 17 Jul 17 Sep 17

65%

Jan 18 Mar 18 May 18

80%

Jul 18

55%

40%

45%

50%

60%

70%

75%

85%

90%

100%

Oldham

North Manchester

Bury&Rochdale

Salford

Bury & Rochdale CO covers ENT tumour groups

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 117



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Short-term and long-term sickness in terms of WTEs, 
% monthly by CO 2017/18

Sickness absence at Oldham and NM are now around the 
target while Salford and Bury & Rochdale are doing better

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack 64

Salford

Bury&Rochdale

North Manchester

Oldham

7.0%

Apr 18Jan 18Sep 17 Jun 18Mar 18

5.0%

6.0%

3.0%

3.5%

4.5%

5.5%

May 18

6.5%

Dec 17Aug 17Apr 17 Nov 17Jun 17 Oct 17 Feb 18May 17 Jul 17

4.0%

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 118



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Staff vacancy rates for medical & dental1, 
% monthly by CO 2017/18 

Vacancy rates for medical & dental staff roles are relatively
high at NM and are trending upwards

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack 65

Jul 17 May 18May 17 Sep 17 Nov 17 Jan 18
0%

Mar 18 Jul 18

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Bury&Rochdale

North Manchester

Oldham

1 Vacancy rates are primarily a function of staff turnover
Data for Salford were unavailable as of August 2018 but are undergoing validation

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 119



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Vacancy rates for nursing & midwifery staff roles are 
highest at NM

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack 66

1 Vacancy rates are primarily a function of staff turnover

Jul 17

5%

May 17 Sep 17 Nov 17 May 18Jan 18 Mar 18 Jul 18
0%

10%

15%

20%

Salford

Bury&Rochdale

North Manchester

Oldham

Staff vacancy rates for nursing & midwifery1, 
% monthly by CO 2017/18 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 120



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Bury & Rochdale CO vacancy rates and agency spend 

SOURCE: Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute NHS Trust, 2018

Add. prof. scientific & technical

Additional clinical services

Administrative and clerical

544.8

Allied health professionals

Estates and ancillary

Healthcare scientists

Medical and dental 162.8

Nursing and midwifery

23.5

205.6

305.2

7.1

2.8

869.6

Actual WTE

Vacant

Excess

£510,914

£97,082

£189,039

Bury Integrated Care

Division of Medicine

HRM Integrated Care

-24%

-1%

6%

3%

2%

36%

18%

11%

67

Number of WTEs
April 2018

% vacancies (+ve) / 
excess (-ve)
April 2018

Agency spend Bury & Rochdale CO
£, April 2018

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 121



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

68

Oldham CO vacancy rates and agency spend 

SOURCE: Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute NHS Trust, 2018

Add. prof. scientific & technical

450.5Additional clinical services

Administrative and clerical

1,051.5

Allied health professionals

Estates and ancillary 10.7

Medical and dental

Nursing and midwifery

31.6

159.2

11.2

316.7

Actual FTE

Vacancy

Excess

-1%

8%

5%

-33%

33%

7%

8%

£310,039

£363,594

£32,572

£245,554

Division of Medicine

Hosted Service

Division of Surgery

Women & Children’s Division

Number of WTEs
April 2018

% vacancies (+ve) / 
excess (-ve)
April 2018

Agency spend Bury & Rochdale CO
£, April 2018

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 122



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

North Manchester CO vacancy rates and agency spend 

Additional clinical services

Healthcare scientists

Administrative and clerical

Allied health professionals

29.7

Medical and dental

Add. prof. scientific & technical

169.5

Estates and ancillary

Nursing and midwifery

505.1

75.3

21.8

47.7

278.8

1,094.0

Vacancy

Actual FTE Excess

8%

6%

8%

£24,898

£273,832

£950,378

£333,234
-5%

11%

13%

18%

14%

Division of Medicine

Division of Surgery

NM integrated Medicine

Women & Children’s Division

SOURCE: Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute NHS Trust, 2018

Number of WTEs
April 2018

% vacancies (+ve) / 
excess (-ve)
April 2018

Agency spend Bury & Rochdale CO
£, April 2018

69

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 123



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Staffing levels for critical care

SOURCE: Trust ESR data 2018

FGH ROH NMGHSRFT

4.0

2.5

0 0

70

Consultant shortfall for critical care
Number of WTEs, September 2018

No shortfall 
in 

consultants

Shortfall 
against a 1 in 

6 rota

No shortfall 
in 

consultants

Shortfall 
against a 1 in 

8 rota

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 124



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Number of day-time ward shifts filled for nurse rotas compared to number expected to be filled 
% monthly by CO 2017/18

Staffing levels for day-time nursing shifts are below the 
optimal staffing target at all COs

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack 71

98%

Sep 17May 17 Jul 17

94%

May 18Nov 17 Jan 18 Mar 18

82%

Jul 18
76%

78%

80%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

96%

100%

Salford

Oldham

Bury&Rochdale

North Manchester

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 125



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Staffing levels for night-time nursing shifts are below the 
optimal staffing target at Oldham and Salford

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack 

Number of night-time ward shifts filled for nurse rotas compared to number expected to be filled
% monthly by CO 2017/18

72

May 17 Jul 17 Sep 17

80%

Nov 17 Jan 18

84%

Mar 18

82%

May 18 Jul 18

90%

78%

86%

94%

88%

92%

96%

98%

100%

North Manchester

Salford

Oldham

Bury&Rochdale D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 126



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

73

T&O and some GM wards at FGH are below optimal levels –
there are also very low care staff fill rates for critical care

General medicine

Fairfield 
General 
Hospital

Rochdale 
Infirmary Intermediate Care

Rehabilitation

General medicine

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack – June 2018 data 

Rehabilitation

Ward 2 CCUCardiology 99.20% 76.70% 95.80% 98.40%

Critical care Ward 10 (ITU/HDU) 101.60% 55.00% 101.70% 56.70%

Ward 5 92.20% 112.90% 80.00% 141.30%

Ward 7 78.70% 93.30% 81.50% 88.00%

Ward 21 91.20% 94.40% 97.80%85.40%

Ward 8 87.00% 102.50% 87.50% 100.90%

General surgery Ward 14 100.00% 106.60% 120.80% 145.80%

Geriatric medicine Ward 20 83.30% 104.20% 96.70% 106.70%

Trauma & 
orthopaedics

Ward 9 74.30% 78.10% 78.90% 101.70%

Ward 11a 106.30% 87.80% 99.30%65.30%

Ward 11b (Stroke) 87.60% 105.00% 97.80% 130.60%

Clinical Admissions Unit 97.10% 100.00% 118.10%112.10%

Oasis Unit – RI 104.20% 99.40% 96.70% 121.90%

Wolstenholme Unit - RI 98.30% 101.20% 100.00% 97.90%

Floyd Unit 104.10% 108.10% 98.30% 130.80%

Fill rates are calculated as the percentage of day / night-time ward shifts expected to be filled that are actually filled, and averaged over the month for each ward. This is a function of vacancy and sickness rates, as 
well as admissions 

Above or at 95% optimal staffing 
level target

Below 95% optimal staffing level 
target but at or above 85%

Below 85% optimal staffing level

Main specialtyHospital Ward
Average fill rate - registered 
nurses Average fill rate - care staff

Average fill rate - registered 
nurses Average fill rate - care staff 

Day Night

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 127



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

74

Certain general surgery and ob-gyn wards at ROH are 
below optimal staffing levels 

Royal Oldham 
Hospital

Cardiology Ward CCU 95.80% 220.00% 88.30% 0.00%

Critical Care 93.70% 89.20% 100.00% 121.90%

Ward AMU 97.40% 86.70% 108.60%78.20%

Ward FIO 112.70% 91.10% 155.90%100.00%

Ward F7 100.40% 101.10% 104.60%92.90%

Ward F8 98.30% 100.00% 113.80%105.80%

Ward F9 88.80% 90.00% 141.10%105.00%

A&E Observation Ward 285.70% 100.00% 214.30%100.00%

Ward G1 107.10% 66.70% 141.30%90.60%

Ward T3 100.00% 82.20% 127.40%89.50%

Ward T4 STU 115.40% 98.90% 130.20%94.80%

Ward T5 101.10% 92.20% 136.10%88.30%

Ward T6 74.10% 72.70% 86.20%78.10%

Ward 62 91.70% 87.50% 100.00%92.30%

Ward T7 106.40% 86.20% 103.30%78.80%

Ward Fl 84.50% 78.00% 97.00% 100.00%

Ward Fli 89.90% 161.60% 94.50% 173.40%

Labour Ward 100.20% 85.80% 105.60% 85.00%

Neonatal Unit 82.30% 25.80% 76.30% 0.00%

Antenatal Ward 126.20% 111.70% 90.00%113.30%

Postnatal Ward 102.40% 88.50% 115.00% 87.50%

Childrens Unit 81.50% 109.20% 90.70% 68.20%

Critical Care

General Medicine

General Surgery

Gynaecology

Haematology

Obstetrics

Paediatrics

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack – June 2018 data 

Fill rates are calculated as the percentage of day / night-time ward shifts expected to be filled that are actually filled, and averaged over the month for each ward. This is a function of vacancy and sickness rates, as 
well as admissions 

Main specialtyHospital Ward
Average fill rate - registered 
nurses Average fill rate - care staff

Average fill rate - registered 
nurses Average fill rate - care staff 

Day Night

Above or at 95% optimal staffing 
level target

Below 95% optimal staffing level 
target but at or above 85%

Below 85% optimal staffing level

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 128



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

75

Certain obstetrics, general surgery and paediatrics
wards at NMGH are below optimal staffing levels 

Main specialty

North 
Manchester 
General 
Hospital

Hospital Ward
Average fill rate - registered 
nurses Average fill rate - care staff

Average fill rate - registered 
nurses Average fill rate - care staff 

Day Night

Ward D6 102.50% 101.50% 100.00%

113.00% 95.00% 133.70%102.20%
Ward C6 90.30% 100.00% 101.80%97.40%
Ward E1 111.10% 103.30% 205.40%93.70%

Ward D5 104.20% 98.30% 100.00%

92.80%

93.30%

Ward F4 153.30% 106.70% 138.50%95.90%
Ward H3 108.10% 100.00% 129.60%96.00%
Ward I6 131.00% 93.30% 121.30%98.30%
Ward J6 105.80% 98.30% 135.00%

Ward C5

97.80%

102.50% 105.00% 146.90%104.70%
Ward C4 77.50% 68.30% 76.70%58.70%
Ward F3 97.50% 113.30% 101.70%89.40%
Ward F5 94.20% 118.30% 96.70%89.90%
Ward F6 

Ward C3 

92.40% 96.70% 103.30% 101.70%

Postnatal Ward 96.10% 97.10% 91.10%
Childrens 88.50% 49.40% 92.20% 123.50%

Neonatal Unit 89.70% 75.60% -76.70%

Labour Ward 94.60% 58.10% 96.00% 62.70%

98.70%

Antenatal Ward 84.30% 83.30% 83.30% 106.70%

Critical Care 94.20% 96.70% 97.00% 106.70%Critical Care 

Gastro-enterology 

General Medicine 

General Surgery 

Ward J3J4 91.80% 107.50% 97.30% 102.20%Infectious Diseases 

Obstetrics 

Paediatrics

Ward I5 75.60% 89.80% 101.10% 135.00%Trauma & Orthopaedics 

Ward CCU 64 84.70% 93.30% 100.00% 100.00%Cardiology 

Ward STU 71.00% 88.30% 100.00% 96.70%Urology 

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack – June 2018 data 

Fill rates are calculated as the percentage of day / night-time ward shifts expected to be filled that are actually filled, and averaged over the month for each ward. This is a function of vacancy and sickness rates, as 
well as admissions 

Above or at 95% optimal staffing 
level target

Below 95% optimal staffing level 
target but at or above 85%

Below 85% optimal staffing level

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 129



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

76

Salford Royal has staffing challenges for registered nurse 
rotas, in particular, across several specialties

Main specialty

Salford Royal 
Hospital

Hospital

Acute Trauma 
Cardiology 

Care of the elderly 

Critical Care Unit 
Dermatology 
Emergency Assessment Unit 
Gastroenterology 

General Surgery 

Haematology 
Heart Care Unit 
Intestinal Failure Unit 
Medical / diabetes 
Medical HDU
Neuro Rehab 
Neuro surgery & ENT 

Neurology 

Neurosurgery 

Programmed Investigation Unit 
Renal 
Respiratory 
Stroke 
Stroke Rehab Unit 
Sub-Acute Care (Pendleton Suite) 
Surgery 
Surgical HDU
Surgical Triage Unit 
Trauma Orthopaedics 
Trauma Rehab 

Acute Stroke Unit 

Urology 

Average fill rate - registered nurses Average fill rate - care staff Average fill rate - registered nurses Average fill rate - care staff 

Day Night

175.22%89.52% 140.37% 72.69%
64.85% 91.75% 70.00% 95.74%

78.57% 90.91% 100.00% 125.00%
79.44% 107.58% 100.00% 118.45%
84.46% 104.88% 91.75% 132.50%
92.96% 55.90% 78.57% 126.67%
97.28% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
96.67% 100.00% 95.00% 96.67%
76.99% 90.42% 69.77% 177.27%
69.62% 80.15% 68.54% 108.40%
86.36% 140.00% 75.00% 230.00%
83.45% 95.00% 78.26% 108.33%
64.00% 178.26% 65.22% 1742.86%
86.22% 88.89% 70.25% 97.44%

106.91% 79.41% 98.33% 115.87%
101.31% 98.60% 93.90% 104.65%
90.94% 95.26% 81.37% 127.27%

123.19% 58.93% 92.18% 67.45%
90.61% 95.24% 74.71% 142.86%
72.15% 83.56% 70.09% 107.44%

100.00% 101.67% 100.00% 100.00%
93.30% 87.73% 89.66% 115.79%

110.26% 100.60% 75.56% 102.16%
59.06% 77.32% 89.66% 97.99%
80.96% 105.68% 86.54% 110.65%
86.12% 97.01% 100.00% 100.00%
79.44% 87.22% 75.83% 133.90%
70.33% 84.07% 76.52% 114.86%
71.43% 91.30% 100.00% 98.98%

- - - -
93.41% 103.85% 97.78% 109.68%
66.43% 90.66% 86.67% 100.81%

100.00% 98.31% 100.00% 100.00%
97.91% 93.21% 96.67% 100.00%
83.63% 105.68% 100.00% 93.18%
65.66% 118.92% 71.11% 132.97%

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack – June 2018 data 

Fill rates are calculated as the percentage of day / night-time ward shifts expected to be filled that are actually filled, and averaged over the month for each ward. This is a function of vacancy and sickness rates, as 
well as admissions 

Above or at 95% optimal staffing 
level target

Below 95% optimal staffing level 
target but at or above 85%

Below 85% optimal staffing level

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 130



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

North West Ambulance Service quality assessment

SOURCE: CQC website

InadequateRequires improvement

GoodOutstanding

Ratings of specific services

NWAS – covers Greater Manchester, Cheshire, Merseyside, Cumbria & Lancashire
Latest inspection in Jun 2016, reported Jan 2017

Overall
Requires
Improvement

Safe
Emergency 
and urgent 
care
Patient 
transport 
services (PTS)
Emergency 
operations 
centre (EOC)

Requires 
Improvement

Requires 
Improvement Good Requires 

Improvement
Requires 
Improvement

Requires 
Improvement

Good Good Good Requires 
ImprovementGood Good

Requires 
Improvement Good Good GoodGood Good

Overview

NHS 111 
service Good Good Good GoodGood Good

Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall 

Safe? Requires improvement 

Caring? Good

Responsive? Good

Effective? Good

Well-led? Requires improvement 

77

• Review the process for 
pre-alerting hospital 
accident and emergency  
departments to make sure 
that communication is 
sufficient for the receiving 
department to be made 
fully aware of the patient’s 
condition

• Make sure that emergency 
operations centre staff 
across all three emergency 
operation centres (EOCs) 
are consistently identifying 
and recording incidents as

• Improve access to clinical 
supervision for all clinical 
staff

• Ensure all staff receive the 
mandatory training 
necessary for their role

Specific recommendations

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 131



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

78

Ambulance activity to each of the NES and Salford sites

1 Defined for Salford, PAHT overall and England average based on HRGs VB01Z-VB08Z

24,084
31,089

25,347

89% 86%
65%

78,335

31,066 26,765

74% 74% 79%

England FGH NMGHROHSRFT

Total 
ambulance 
arrivals, #

Site total 
that are 
classified as 
Resus, very 
urgent or 
urgent

PAHT

Total 
ambulance 
arrivals, #

Trust total 
that are 
classified as 
major or 
standard 
care1

SOURCE: Pennine Acute Trust data, 2018; HES A&E M13 2016/17 data, c/o NHS Digital

Ambulance attendances to each trust, 
2016/17

Ambulance attendances to each site, 
2017/18

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 132



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

NM, in particular, does not use estate as efficiently as other sites, and 
has substantial backlog maintenance costs of nearly £100m

SOURCE: ERIC 17/18 and Capita review of Pennine sites 79

9

18

7
12

0

Unused or under-used 
estate
% of floor area that is 
empty or under-used

16.7

99.6
77.1

13.1 14.9

1 Data for Pennine sites is based on a Capita review for backlog over the next six years; data for Salford site is based on ERIC 17/18 returns

30

50

25 22

0

Age profile - estate that 
is pre-1948
% total estate

Total backlog 
maintenance costs 
18/19 to 22/23
£m1

FGH ROHNMGH RI Salford

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 133



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Both Trusts have underlying financial deficits

SOURCE: Provider and Commissioner model, GM Theme 3

Baseline I&E for PAHT
£000s, 2017/18

-30,834

-61,681
Starting 
position

Recurrent 
starting 
position

30,847

Non-recurrent 
adjustment

Baseline I&E for SRFT
£000s, 2017/18

18,000

-20,680
Recurrent 
starting 
position

Starting 
position

38,680

Non-recurrent 
adjustment

80

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 134



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Contents

 Our population and their needs

 Out-of-hospital care

 Acute care activity

 Acute care performance

 Acute site profiles

81

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 135



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Section summary

 Changes to consolidate activity at sites have already been agreed for 
certain services

 The Healthier Together business case (2015) has already recommended 
that some services, e.g. general surgery, move in order to capture the 
benefits to clinical quality, workforce and financial sustainability from 
delivering services at scale

 Further consolidation may deliver similar improvements in other fragile 
services as well as the use of estate that provides a better care 
experience for both patients and staff

Focus of today’s discussionsD
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 136



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Fairfield General Hospital profile

SOURCE: Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust annual report 2016/17; Pennine Trust Bed Stock 2018

55.14%

28.41%

4.57%

3.55%

1.71%

6.62%

Manchester CCG

Oldham CCG

Other

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

NHS England

1 Includes maternity beds, paediatric beds, and daycase trolleys
2 Includes OP attendances, A&E attendances and admissions

83

Number of beds 282 acute beds; 0 other beds & trolleys1

Inpatient spells NEL: 35,434; EL: 2,234 

A&E attendances 71,449

Number of day 
cases

15,006

Number of 
outpatients

117,162

Fairfield activity split, all activity2, 2016/17, NES = 87% 

Fairfield key facts, 2017/18▪ Fairfield General Hospital (FGH) is part of the Bury & Rochdale CO
▪ FGH has already been significantly reconfigured
▪ It predominantly provides medical and elective surgery and specialises

in stroke, cardiology, ENT and orthopaedics, providing these services 
for the PAHT (Pennine Acute Hospital Trust) element of the NCA 
(Northern care Alliance)

▪ FGH does not provide acute or non-elective surgery, trauma, inpatient 
paediatrics or maternity, or gastroenterology

▪ Bury, Oldham and Rochdale locality plans and Transformation Fund 
bids propose major shift of activity away from FGH, which could 
reduce activity to a level that could potentially result in:
– Lower quality of care due to a lack of opportunity for workforce 

to maintain skills
– Higher costs due to underutilised estate and workforce

▪ Critical care service is provided at both FGH and ROH, where rotas are 
linked, and which has seen both quality and workforce sustainability 
issues with a consultant shortfall and very low care staff fill rates

▪ There is an opportunity to maximise use of capacity at FGH as part of 
shared hospital services across NCA

Key facts about the siteCurrent situation

Rationale for change

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 137



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Rochdale Infirmary profile

8.85%

65.77%

8.23%

2.98%

3.15%

11.02%

Manchester CCG

HMR CCG

Bury CCG

Other

Oldham CCG

NHS England

SOURCE: Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust annual report 2016/17; Pennine Trust Bed Stock 2018

1 Includes maternity beds, paediatric beds, and daycase trolleys
2 Includes OP attendances, A&E attendances and admissions

Number of beds 16 acute beds; 51 other beds & trolleys1

Inpatient spells NEL: 3,373; EL: 178

A&E attendances 51,666

Number of day 
cases

25,533 

Number of 
outpatients

137,764

Rochdale Infirmary activity split, all activity2 2016/17, NES = 83% 

Rochdale key facts, 2017/18▪ Rochdale Infirmary is part of the Bury & Rochdale CO and has a 
partnership with Rochdale Health Alliance to support the delivery of 
improved primary care services

▪ Rochdale was significantly reconfigured as part of the Healthy Futures 
reconfiguration across Pennine Acute and the North East Sector 
including North Manchester 

▪ It now provides an urgent care centre and clinical assessment unit, a 
small number of inpatient medical beds, 23-hour day case provision, 
ophthalmology for the North East Sector, rheumatology and resp-
iratory services and range of outpatient services.  It has developed an 
innovative rehabilitation service with intermediate care, integrated 
community teams (neighbourhood based), the OASIS unit which is an 
inpatient facility for people with acute illness and dementia  

▪ It no longer provides NEL Surgery, Trauma, A&E, Paediatrics, or 
Maternity and has a very small number of inpatient medical beds 

▪ Significant change has already happened at RI and the site currently 
functions well

▪ The Bury and Rochdale Care Organisation will host the Rochdale Local 
Care Organisation and this presents further opportunities to integrate 
health and social care community and acute services more effectively, 
manage patients with long-term conditions more effectively and 
further strengthen the partnerships with primary care, the VCSE and 
mental health services

▪ Innovative models such as the OASIS unit and the Wolstenholme unit 
could be replicated across other sites in NCA

Key facts about the siteCurrent situation

Rationale for change

84

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 138



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Royal Oldham Hospital profile

3.35%

20.07%

63.62%

4.32%

1.42%

7.22%

NHS England

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Manchester CCG

Other

SOURCE: Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust annual report 2016/17; Pennine Trust Bed Stock 2018

Number of beds 382 acute beds; 181 other beds & trolleys1

Inpatient spells NEL: 60,554; EL: 4,683

A&E attendances 106,924 

Number of day 
cases

17,287 

Number of 
outpatients

204,480 

Royal Oldham activity split, all activity2 2016/17, NES = 87% 

Royal Oldham key facts, 2017/18▪ The Royal Oldham Hospital (ROH) is part of the Oldham CO
▪ ROH will be a high acuity site inclusive of a trauma unit in addition to 

being a local general hospital, with a revised front end with A&E, 
streaming to primary care, AMU and ambulatory care 

▪ It is the designated Healthier Together hub site for the North East 
Sector (NES) and will therefore see an increase in General Surgery 
emergency and high-risk patients – for which it has received capital 
investment

▪ Christie services are available from ROH as well as full critical care, 
maternity, centralised pathology for the NES, gynaecology services 
and paediatrics including a NICU

▪ Locality plans and Transformation Fund bids propose deflecting 
activity away from acute services at ROH through a greater focus on 
preventing ill health and delivering more out-of-hospital care

▪ This will be great for improving population health outcomes in 
Oldham; however, it may result in subscale activity in certain acute 
service lines. This in turn could result in:
– Lower quality of care due to a lack of opportunity for workforce 

to maintain skills 
– Higher costs due to underutilised estate and workforce 

▪ In particular, critical care, which shares rotas with FGH, is already 
experiencing quality challenges as revealed by a recent CQC 
inspection and ICNARC report

Key facts about the siteCurrent situation

Rationale for change

85

1 Includes maternity beds, paediatric beds, and daycase trolleys
2 Includes OP attendances, A&E attendances and admissions

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 139



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

North Manchester General Hospital profile

22.28%

17.19%

6.21%

39.37%

3.23%

11.72%

Oldham CCG

HMR CCG

Bury CCG

Manchester CCG

Other

NHS England

SOURCE: Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust annual report 2016/17; Pennine Trust Bed Stock 2018

Number of beds 370 acute beds; 137 other beds & trolleys1

Inpatient spells NEL: 45,351; EL: 4,740

A&E attendances 101,645 

Number of day 
cases

12,534

Number of 
outpatients

227,207 

North Manc General activity split, all activity2 2016/17, NES = 46% 

North Manchester key facts, 2017/18▪ North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH) is part of the North 
Manchester CO

▪ The NMGH site is due to be acquired MFT, and will no longer be part 
of PAHT

▪ MHCC intend to utilise the site for much of its current provision as 
well as a health and well-being hub and mental health services.  The 
site is undergoing master planning to identify other potential uses 
including educational facilities and housing options

▪ Its services are used by Manchester residents as well as by Bury and 
HMR patients as well.  Some services on the site provide services to all 
the Pennine population such as diagnostics and urology.  About 57% 
of activity on the site is outside of North Manchester

▪ There have been challenges with estate at NM:
– In June, four theatres in the older part of the hospital were closed 

for safety reasons with most displaced activity being absorbed 
within the remaining nine theatres

– A further two theatres will be in need of replacement in 18 
months

▪ However, change at this site will be out of scope of the NES service 
strategy – nonetheless, agreed and possible future changes will 
impact PAHT sites

▪ For example, all high acuity general surgery activity will transfer to 
ROH as agreed in the Healthier Together consultation while other 
services are part of the GM Theme 3 review and will be reconfigured 
as a result of new care models

Key facts about the siteCurrent situation

Rationale for change

86

1 Includes maternity beds, paediatric beds, and daycase trolleys
2 Includes OP attendances, A&E attendances and admissions

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 140



CONFIDENTIAL WORK IN PROGRESS – NOT FOR CIRCULATIONSUBJECT TO UPDATES

Salford Royal Hospital profile

Number of beds 792 acute beds; 32 other beds & trolleys1

Inpatient spells NEL:  68,527; EL: 10,971 

A&E attendances 100,586

Number of day 
cases

47,831

Number of 
outpatients

556,630

Salford Royal activity split, all activity2 2016/17, NES = 15% 

41.96%

6.95%

4.40%

3.95%

7.85%

0.16%

34.73%

NHS England

Other

Salford CCG

Bury CCG

HMR CCG

Oldham CCG

Manchester CCG

Salford Royal key facts, 2017/18

SOURCE: NCA CiC July 2018 pack; Bed Availability and Occupancy, NHS England Q1 2018/19; NCA activity model 87

▪ Salford Royal is part of a fully integrated care organisation, Salford CO, 
which brings together adult social care, mental health, community 
and acute services

▪ Provides medical and surgical services for the local Salford population 
with elective orthopaedic services at the Manchester Elective 
Orthopaedics Centre

▪ Designated Healthier Together high acuity site for General Surgery for 
the North West Sector (NWS)

▪ Provides a range of GM services including GM Neurosciences Centre; 
GM Major Trauma services (adult); GM Comprehensive Stroke Centre; 
and specialised services in Dermatology, Renal, and Intestinal Failure

▪ Designated GM site for the Oesophageal Cancer surgery and is one of 
the two North West providers of bariatric surgery

▪ Hosts The Christie Radiotherapy services
▪ Does not provide maternity, IP paediatric, elective breast surgery 

services or opthamology – these are provided at Bolton

▪ Salford Royal has scored outstanding on its recent inspection by the 
CQC for the second time

▪ However, the site is facing some challenges, particularly operational 
and workforce challenges:
– Operational: A&E waiting time and diagnostic waiting time 

performance has been deteriorating
– Workforce: ward shift fill rates for registered nurses are 

consistently below target levels

Key facts about the siteCurrent situation

Rationale for change

1 Includes maternity beds, paediatric beds, and daycase trolleys
2 Includes OP attendances, A&E attendances and admissions

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TITLE: Care Act 2014 Policies

DATE OF MEETING: Health Scrutiny Committee – 8th November 2018

REPORT FROM:
Shirley Allen/Helen Marrow

CONTACT OFFICER: Shirley Allen

1.     INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Care Act 2014 is the biggest change to English adult social care law in over 
60 years, reforming the law relating to care and support for customers and 
carers. The Care Act became effective from 1st April 2015 and replaces a 
number of different pieces of legislation with a single modern law and a new 
legal framework that affects how Councils support people with care and support 
needs and carers.

1.2 The Care Act introduced a number of significant changes to how care is charged 
for, who may have to contribute and how much people will have to pay towards 
their care.

2.      SUMMARY

2.1 As a result of the implementation of the Care Act, Bury Council have reviewed 
and refreshed the following key operational policies and produced an internal 
staff Personal Budget guidance document.

● Assessment and Eligibility Policy
● Charging and Financial Assessment Policy
● Personal Budget Policy 
● The Residential Care Top Up Policy is a new policy that has been 

developed as a result of the legislation and will require processes and 
pathways to be established prior to implementation.

● Personal Budget Policy Staff Guidance (for internal use only)

1

REPORT TO HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Document Pack Page 143 Agenda Item 7



2.2 There will be a staff and budget resource requirement to implement the 
changes, this amounts to £ £46,284 and will be funded temporarily, in the first 
instance for 12 months from obtaining policy approval.

2.3 Work is underway to develop the pathways and processes required for 
implementation, and it is expected this will be completed by January 2019.

2.4 On completion of this development work the policies, processes and pathways 
will be published and implemented.

2.5 A copy of each of the policies can be found in background papers item 1. 

2.6 Detailed Care Act 2014 guidance can be found in the link in background papers 
item 3.

3.      KEY POLICY CHANGES

3.1 To introduce a national eligibility criteria which will apply to all councils in 
England.

3.2  Replacement care is a significant part of the Act, this has now to be 
incorporated into the customers support plan and financially assessed 
accordingly. 

3.3 People who only receive a Day Service will now be asked to pay a charge but 
will have the opportunity to have a financial assessment of their ability to pay.

3.4 To remove from the calculation an allowance of the amount between the 
Disability Living Allowance (DLA) higher/middle rate where night sitting 
services are not received.

3.5 The charge and financial assessment will be worked out against 100% of the 
value of the personal budget package.

3.6  People who receive more than one carer at the same time may now be 
required to pay an increase in charges.

3.7 In relation to residential care top up charges-  a person (third party) agreeing 
to pay the extra amount will have to sign a legal agreement with the Council, 
agreeing to meet the extra costs and agreeing to provide details of their 
personal information.

3.8 A full list of the Care Act changes can be found in background papers item 5.  

4. CHANGES AS A RESULT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE POLICIES?

4.1 The key changes will have an impact both in terms of Council and customer 
resources, the implications for council resources have now been scoped, all of 
the changes and their possible impact are provided in full detail below;

2

Document Pack Page 144



4.2 Assessment and Eligibility Policy

4.2.1 To introduce a national eligibility criteria which will apply to all councils in 
England. This will bring consistency as everybody will be subject to the same 
determination wherever they live in England. This has been implemented since 
May 2015. All assessment officers have received appropriate training but this is 
now being reviewed in the light of strengths based assessment transformation 
activity.

4.2.2 All carers to be offered an assessment and the development of a national 
eligibility criteria for carers which will apply to all councils in England. Although 
Bury has always undertaken carers assessments, some councils do not.

4.2.3 Specialist assessments must be provided for people with autism and adults who 
are deaf blind. This now applies across England. Bury is already doing this. 

4.2.4 Council has to ensure there is an appropriate individual who can facilitate 
involvement in the assessment process for people who would have substantial 
difficulty, if no suitable individual is available the Council must facilitate access 
to an independent advocate. There is an advocacy service in place for Bury 
which can also be accessed by carers in their own right. 

4.3 Replacement Care

4.3.1 Replacement care is a significant part of the Act, which removes the ability to 
have services delivered to a customer on the basis of a carers’ assessment. 
This has now to be incorporated into the customers support plan and financially 
assessed accordingly. 

4.3.2 This will impact upon all current carers who have replacement care on their 
support plans  although in most cases this will be transferred to the cared for 
support plan with no changes to services or additional payments. If a cared for 
person has been financially assessed and has reached the maximum 
contribution they can pay towards services there will be no additional 
payments. 

4.3.3 This has applied to all new customers since May 2015 and the majority of 
existing customers have now had an annual review and replacement care has 
been transferred across to the cared for support plan.

4.4 Charging and Financial Assessment Policy

4.4.1 Social Care services are not free and the Government expects councils to 
charge and collect income to help provide these services. Social Care Services 
might include, for example, care at home, day services, or residential care 
services. The Council has to make sure that it follows the rules that the 
Government has set in the Care Act 2014.

4.4.2 People who only receive a Day Service will now be asked to pay a charge but 
will have the opportunity to have a financial assessment of their ability to pay. 
Some people will already be paying their individual maximum amount if they 
are receiving other services and have already had a financial assessment. 
Therefore they will pay no more. Some people will already be receiving services 
with no charge because of the result of their financial assessment. This will not 
change.

3

Document Pack Page 145



4.4.3 To remove from the calculation an allowance of the amount between the 
Disability Living Allowance (DLA) higher/middle rate where night sitting 
services are not received. This allowance will now be removed from the 
financial assessment and this may increase charges for some people. We have 
already been doing this for new customers or at a change in circumstances 
since May 2015.

4.4.4 The charge and financial assessment will be worked out against 100% of the 
value of the personal budget package. People whose elements of the support 
plan are not personal care will now be charged, previously these non - personal 
care elements were left out of the financial calculations.

 
4.4.5 Charges will be for the total time for all carers required to carry out the task. 

People who receive more than one carer at the same time may now be required 
to pay an increase in charges, people with only one carer or who already pay 
the maximum financially assessed amount will not be affected.

4.5 Residential Care Top Up Policy

4.5.1 The person (third party) agreeing to pay the extra amount will have to sign a 
legal agreement with the Council, agreeing to meet the extra costs and 
agreeing to provide details of their personal information. This will affect people 
who have agreed to meet the extra costs on behalf of a resident in a care 
home, that charges more that the agreed rate, where previously the person 
contracted directly with the care home but will now contract with the Council. 

4.5.2 The person (third party) must provide financial details, if the required Top-Up 
Fee is more than £50.00 per week to confirm they have; 

4.5.3 At least 3 year’s worth of savings to cover the extra costs, or they have;

4.5.4 Enough weekly income above this weekly expenditure to meet the extra costs. 
This calculation and the process are new and pathways and procedures will 
need to be developed once the policies are approved.

4.5.6 To introduce a way of calculating that the person (first party) living in the care 
home can pay this extra cost themselves, this is usually only when they have a 
house to sell. Checks will need to be made that there is enough capital within 
the property to offset the additional costs for at least 3 years. 

4.6 Personal Budget Policy

4.6.1 Clarifies the amounts allowed to be spent from the personal budget to purchase 
services needed, the budget will be generated using a series of established fees 
and will apply to all people who receive direct payments. This makes sure it is 
fair and consistent approach compared with those people who chose to have 
their services provided to them by the Council. Further details are contained in 
the appendices of the Personal Budget Policy. 

4.6.2 If a person chooses a service at a higher rate it must be identified who will be 
willing and able to meet the additional costs. This will apply to all people 
receiving direct payments who choose services higher than standard rate. This 
makes sure it is a fair and consistent approach compared with those people 
who choose to have their services provided to them by the Council. 

4

Document Pack Page 146



5. THE ENGAGEMENT PROCESS

5.1 A steering group was set up to look at how Bury Council could communicate 
these impending changes to as many people as possible in Bury, including 
current customers, providers and the wider general public.

5.2 The engagement exercise began in the second week of September 2017 and 
ran until the 18th of January 2018. The following engagement methods were 
used;

5.3 An engagement booklet was produced with details of the process, all of the 
changes, how people could let us know about any particular issues, details of a 
number of public drop in sessions and where further information could be 
found. The engagement booklet was designed to allow people to contact us to 
let us know their thoughts and was designed so that it could be folded up and 
sealed and returned postage paid to the Council. Details of the engagement 
booklet can be found in background papers item 4. 

5.4 5000 hard copies of the engagement booklet were designed and printed and 
4500 were distributed to various sources.  

5.5 Hard copies of the engagement booklet were sent through the post to current 
customers and carers, or their nominated representatives, where we had the 
information on our systems.

5.6 Hard copies were also made available at all libraries, the Town Hall, Knowsley 
Place, Whittaker Street and Humphrey House reception areas, Connect and 
Direct Hub and the Carers Centre on Silver Street.

5.7 Hard copies were also provided to social care assessment staff. Social care 
assessment staff were provided with information about the engagement 
process at least two weeks before commencement so that they would be able 
to respond to any issues that arose as part of their day to day duties. 

5.8 The engagement booklet, draft copies of the four policies and the Care Act 
guidance were available to read or download on the Bury Directory.

5.9 Comments could also be provided on line through survey monkey, the link to 
the survey was widely advertised amongst partners and all council staff and via 
social media by the Social Development Team.

5.10 A designated telephone line was provided and advertised widely so that people 
could contact the Council if they had any queries, wanted copies of the draft 
policies, or needed the information in a different format. A number of people 
used this method to find out how the changes in policies would affect them 
personally.

5.11 A number of public drop in sessions, one in each township, were held where 
people could drop in and find out more. Most of the people attending the drop 
ins wanted to know how the changes would impact upon them personally.

5

Document Pack Page 147



5.12   Appropriate staff also attended a number of targeted forums where the 
changes were discussed in detail. One coffee morning at the Carers Centre 
where over 50 carers attended, one session at the Carers Forum at which over 
40 people were in attendance, two provider forums. 

5.13 Officers also attended other forums that were already booked and initiated 
discussions around the changes. 

5.14 All Bury Council staff with internet access were sent an electronic copy of all of 
the engagement information and given the opportunity to feed back any 
comments.

5.15 Electronic information was sent to all care at home, residential and nursing and 
supported living providers registered with Bury Council, to Bury Clinical 
Commissioning Group for distribution to their staff, Bury Dementia Action 
Alliance members and to the local Dementia Champions network. 

5.16 Numbers of people engaged with over the period;

● 45 people attended drop in sessions set up at Radcliffe Library, Elms 
Community Centre, Ramsbottom Centre, Elton Community Centre, The 
Mosses Centre and the Green Room Textile Hall. 

● 2 provider forums were held at which 60 representatives from various 
providers attended. 

● Over 110 people attended the two carers events.

● The dedicated phone line received 34 calls and 40 responses were 
received back from either online survey monkey or hard copies sent pre 
- paid back to the Council.

● The Bury Directory received 447 views between 1st September to 31st 
December 2017 which was up by 200.65% on the site average

5.17 Feedback Received

5.18 The majority of people who contacted the Council or attended an event wanted 
to know how the changes would affect them personally. Where this was the 
case officers contacted them personally and discussed these issues in private. 

5.19 The most common themes from the drop ins were; 

● People’s concerns about Residential Care Top Ups and the financial 
checks that would be required to check sustainability. 

● A number of people wanted to let us know that they were currently being 
charged a top up by care homes for their relatives. 

● Just to note that at every session, excepting the provider forums we 
received comments/complaints about this.

5.20 Other common themes that were discussed were; 

6

Document Pack Page 148



● Charges for day care, charges for 2 carers and replacement care. 

● A number of people were concerned about the changes to DLA and PIP 
and how this may result in them having to pay more for services.

6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

6.1 The Care Act 2014 was bought into legislation in order to offer clearer more 
equitable access to social care and services. Many of the changes to policies will 
ensure that customers for whom the Council commissions services will be treated 
equally to those for whom the Council provides a personal budget to buy their 
own services as the funding available to a customer will be formulated from the 
same fee baselines as detailed in the Charging and Financial Assessment Policy 
appendices.

6.2 In relation to the Assessment and Eligibility process all cared for customers and 
carers will be subject to the same eligibility criteria across England no matter 
where they live.

6.3 In relation to the Residential Care Top Up policy this is expected to ensure that all 
customers are treated fairly in relation to additional charges set by Residential 
Care Homes and that there is a transparent system in place so that customers 
who choose to have an enhanced service from a provider know exactly what they 
are being charged extra for. All EIAs are included in the background papers for 
further information.

6.4 Equality Impact Assessments for each of the policies can be found in background 
papers item 2.

7. RISK

7.1 The full financial implications of the legislative changes have not yet been fully 
scoped. Each customer is treated individually under the personalisation agenda 
and as such will have to be individually assessed to assess personal impact. There 
are a number of variations to be assessed including type and complexity of 
services provided and personal income that will be subject to financial 
assessment.

8. FUTURE PLANS AND PRIORITIES

8.1 An implementation plan has been drawn up highlighting all of the key actions 
that need to take place between now and January 2019 (item 6 in the 
background papers).

7

Document Pack Page 149



List of Background Papers:-

1. Policies for Approval 

Eligiblity and 
Assessment Policy FINAL.docx

Charging and 
Financial Assessment v0.9 May2018.docx

Personal Budget 
Policy - Staff Guidance v0.2 (Jan2018).docx

Personal Budget 
Policy v0.13 May2018.doc

Residential Care 
Top Up policy v0.7 May2018.docx

2. Equality Impact Assessments

Equality Analysis - 
Charging and Financial Assessment Policy 2017 

EA - Equality 
Analysis Form Care Act eligibility and assessment.docx

Equality Analysis 
Residential Care Top-Up Policy.docx

EA - Equality 
Analysis Form Personal Budget Policy.doc

3. Link to the Care Act 2014 Guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-statutory-guidance 

4. Care Act Engagement Booklet

40087 Bury Council 
questionaire booklet.pdf

5 Full list of changes to business processes required

Appendix 1 full list 
of changes.docx

6. Care Act Policy Implementation Plan

Copy of Copy of 
Care Act Policy  Implementation Action Plan ver 0.4 October2018.xlsx

Contact Details:- 

Shirley Allen 
Project Lead 
Communities and Wellbeing - Strategic Development Unit
S.Allen@bury.gov.uk
0161 253 6302

8

Document Pack Page 150

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-statutory-guidance
mailto:S.Allen@bury.gov.uk


Care Act 2014

1

The Care Act 2014 is the biggest change to English adult social care law in 
over 60 years, reforming the law relating to care and support for customers 
and carers.

The Care Act became effective from 1st April 2015 and replaces a number of 
different pieces of legislation with a single modern law and a new legal 
framework that affects how councils support people with care and support 
needs and carers.

As a result of the implementation of the Care Act, We have reviewed and 
refreshed the following key operational policies and produced an internal staff 
Personal Budget guidance document.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 151



Care Act 2014

2

2 revised and refreshed policies

Charging and Financial Assessment Policy

Personal Budget Policy 

2 new policies 

Residential Care Top Up Policy

Assessment and Eligibility Policy

1 Personal Budget Policy staff guidance document

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 152



What is the Care Act trying to Achieve?

3

That care and support:

● is clearer and fairer
● promotes people’s wellbeing
● enables people to prevent and delay the need for care and 

support, and carers to maintain their caring role
● puts people in control of their lives so they can pursue 

opportunities to realise their potential

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 153



Underpinning Principle

Wellbeing

General responsibilities and key duties

Prevention
Integration, Partnerships and transitions
Information, advice and advocacy
Diversity of provision and market oversight
Safeguarding

Key Processes

Assessment and eligibility
Charging and financial assessment
Care and support planning
Personal budgets and direct payments
Review

Framework of the Act 

4

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 154



Changes to Assessment and Eligibility

5

To introduce a national eligibility criteria which will apply to all councils in England. 
This will bring consistency as everybody will be subject to the same determination 
wherever they live in England. This has been implemented since May 2015. All 
assessment officers have received appropriate training but this is now being 
reviewed in the light of strengths based assessment transformation activity.

All carers to be offered an assessment and the development of a national eligibility 
criteria for carers which will apply to all councils in England. Although Bury has 
always undertaken carers assessments, some councils do not.

Specialist assessments must be provided for people with autism and adults who 
are deaf blind. This now applies across England. Bury is already doing this

Council has to ensure there is an appropriate individual who can facilitate 
involvement in the assessment process for people who would have substantial 
difficulty, if no suitable individual is available the Council must facilitate access to 
an independent advocate. There is an advocacy service in place for Bury which can 
also be accessed by carers in their own right. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 155



Replacement Care

6

Replacement care is a significant part of the Act, which removes the ability to 
have services delivered to a customer on the basis of a carers’ assessment. 
This has now to be incorporated into the customers support plan and 
financially assessed accordingly. 

This will impact upon all current carers who have replacement care on their 
support plans  although in most cases this will be transferred to the cared for 
support plan with no changes to services or additional payments. If a cared 
for person has been financially assessed and has reached the maximum 
contribution they can pay towards services there will be no additional 
payments. 

This has applied to all new customers since May 2015 and the majority of 
existing customers have now had an annual review and replacement care has 
been transferred across to the cared for support plan.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 156



Charging and Financial Assessment Policy

.

7

Social Care services are not free and the Government expects councils to charge and 
collect income to help provide these services. Social Care Services might include, for 
example, care at home, day services, or residential care services. The Council has to 
make sure that it follows the rules that the Government has set in the Care Act 2014.

People who only receive a Day Service will now be asked to pay a charge but will have 
the opportunity to have a financial assessment of their ability to pay. Some people will 
already be paying their individual maximum amount if they are receiving other services 
and have already had a financial assessment. Therefore they will pay no more. Some 
people will already be receiving services with no charge because of the result of their 
financial assessment. This will not change.

To remove from the calculation an allowance of the amount between the Disability 
Living Allowance (DLA) higher/middle rate where night sitting services are not received. 
This allowance will now be removed from the financial assessment and this may 
increase charges for some people

The charge and financial assessment will be worked out against 100% of the value of 
the personal budget package. People whose elements of the support plan are not 
personal care will now be charged, previously these non - personal care elements were 
left out of the financial calculations.

Charges will be for the total time for all carers required to carry out the task. People 
who receive more than one carer at the same time may now be required to pay an 
increase in charges, people with only one carer or who already pay the maximum 
financially assessed amount will not be affected.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 157



Residential Care Top Up Policy

8

The person (third party) agreeing to pay the extra amount will have to sign a legal 
agreement with the Council, agreeing to meet the extra costs and agreeing to provide details 
of their personal information. This will affect people who have agreed to meet the extra costs 
on behalf of a resident in a care home, that charges more that the agreed rate, where 
previously the person contracted directly with the care home but will now contract with the 
Council. 

The person (third party) must provide financial details to confirm they have; 

At least 3 year’s worth of savings to cover the extra costs, or they have enough weekly 
income above this weekly expenditure to meet the extra costs. This calculation and the 
process are new and pathways and procedures will need to be developed.

To introduce a way of calculating that the person (first party) living in the care home can pay 
this extra cost themselves, this is usually only when they have a house to sell. Checks will 
need to be made that there is enough capital within the property to offset the additional 
costs for at least 3 years. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 158



Personal Budget Policy

9

Clarifies the amounts allowed to be spent from the personal budget to purchase 
services needed, the budget will be generated using a series of established fees and 
will apply to all people who receive direct payments. This makes sure it is fair and 
consistent approach compared with those people who chose to have their services 
provided to them by the Council. Further details are contained in the appendices of 
the Personal Budget Policy

If a person chooses a service at a higher rate it must be identified who will be willing 
and able to meet the additional costs. This will apply to all people receiving direct 
payments who choose services higher than standard rate. This makes sure it is a fair 
and consistent approach compared with those people who choose to have their 
services provided to them by the Council. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 159



The Engagement Process - 1

The engagement exercise began in the second week of September 2017 and ran until the 18th of January 2018. 
The following engagement methods were used.

An engagement booklet was produced with details of the process, all of the changes, how people could let us 
know about any particular issues, details of a number of public drop in sessions and where further information 
could be found. 

5000 hard copies of the engagement booklet were designed and printed and 4500 were distributed to various 
sources including through the post to current customers and carers, or their nominated representatives, where 
we had the information on our systems.

Hard copies were also made available at all libraries, the Town Hall, Knowsley Place, Whittaker Street and 
Humphrey House reception areas, Connect and Direct Hub and the Carers Centre on Silver Street.

The engagement booklet, draft copies of the four policies and the Care Act guidance were available to read or 
download on the Bury Directory.

Comments could also be provided on line through survey monkey, the link to the survey was widely advertised 
amongst partners and all council staff and via social media by the Social Development Team

A designated telephone line was provided and advertised widely so that people could contact the Council if they 
had any queries, wanted copies of the draft policies, or needed the information in a different format. A number of 
people used this method to find out how the changes in policies would affect them personally.

10

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 160



Bury – a great place in which to live, work, visit and study

The Engagement Process - 2

11

A number of public drop in sessions, one in each township, were held where people could 
drop in and find out more. Most of the people attending the drop ins wanted to know how 
the changes would impact upon them personally.

Appropriate staff also attended a number of targeted forums where the changes were 
discussed in detail. One coffee morning at the Carers Centre where over 50 carers 
attended, one session at the Carers Forum at which over 40 people were in attendance, 
two provider forums. 

Officers also attended other forums that were already booked and initiated discussions 
around the changes. 

All Bury Council staff with internet access were sent an electronic copy of all of the 
engagement information and given the opportunity to feed back any comments.

Electronic information was sent to all care at home, residential and nursing and supported 
living providers registered with Bury Council, to Bury Clinical Commissioning Group for 
distribution to their staff, Bury Dementia Action Alliance members and to the local 
Dementia Champions network. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 161



The Engagement Process - 3

12

45 people attended drop in sessions set up at Radcliffe Library, Elms Community Centre, 
Ramsbottom Centre, Elton Community Centre, The Mosses Centre and the Green Room 
Textile Hall. 

2 provider forums were held at which 60 representatives from various providers attended

Over 110 people attended the two carers events.

The dedicated phone line received 34 calls and 40 responses were received back from either 
online survey monkey or hard copies sent pre - paid back to the Council.

The Bury Directory received 447 views between 1st September to 31st December 2017 
which was up by 200.65% on the site average

The majority of people who contacted the Council or attended an event wanted to know 
how the changes would affect them personally. Where this was the case officers contacted 
them personally and discussed these issues in private. 

The most common themes from the drop ins were; 

People’s concerns about Residential Care Top Ups and the financial checks that would be 
required to check sustainability. 

A number of people wanted to let us know that they were currently being charged a top up 
by care homes for their relatives. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 162



Current activities and Next Steps

13

An implementation plan has been drawn up highlighting all of the key actions that need to take 
place between now and January 2019 (item 6 in the background papers).

Eligibility and Assessment

● Update all leaflets, booklets, print, circulate and publish on Bury Directory

Residential Care Top Up Policy

● Create the Bury legal agreement for 3rd parties to sign
● Create Top-Up application form
● Speak to providers and request details of who has existing top-ups, copies of pricing 
policy, how much each top- up is worth and what the top-up is for
● Write to 3rd parties to inform of the change and request financial details
● Calculate affordability assessment and write to inform of decision/outcome
● Arrange for legal agreement to be signed
● Set up internal financial systems
● Update all leaflets, brochures, print, circulate and publish on Bury Directory

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 163



Current activities and Next Steps

14

Charging and Financial Assessment Policy

● Recruit 2 new temporary financial assessment officers
● Establish who attends day care and contact details and check details in support plan and 
Protocol
● Establish who already has a current valid financial assessment and/or do a DWP CIS 
check
● Notify customer of any new charges and amount to be paid
● Set up internal changes to systems - ABACUS
● Arrange for a new financial assessment to be carried out if needed
● Remove DLA allowance/charge against 100% of package
● Charge for 2nd carer if required and any cancelled visits
● Write to affected customers with details of new personal charges
● Update all leaflets, booklets, print, circulate and publish on Bury Directory

Personal Budget Policy
● Update agreement and all PBST letters, leaflets and forms 
● Publish the approved list of Managed Account Companies
● Transfer cases with non-approved providers
● Create a new Direct Payment booklet, print, circulate and publish on Bury Directory 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 164



15

Any Questions?

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 165



Conclusion

16

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 166


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 LOCALITY PLAN UPDATE
	Health Overview and Scrutiny Risk Log

	6 NORTH EAST SECTOR - CLINICAL SERVICES TRANSFORMATION
	20181024 Bury Governing Body - abridged Case for Change
	11102018 Case for change vF
	NES Clinical Services:�Case for Change
	Summary case for change
	Contents
	Section summary
	The NES serves three boroughs; however any service change will have implications for Salford and NM, as well as vice versa
	The population of the four boroughs is slightly younger than the England average
	Population in the four boroughs is set to increase by 0.5% p.a. by 2025 with the over 70’s and over 90’s being the fastest growing
	Almost three-quarters of the total population increase between 2018 and 2025 will be in the over 60’s
	The NES and Salford areas have very high levels of deprivation, with particularly high pockets of deprivation in Rochdale and Salford
	There is low overlap between those areas with high fertility rates and those with low birth weight term babies
	Obesity and smoking are particularly prevalent in parts of Rochdale and Salford
	Respiratory diseases, especially smoking-related ones, �and depression are higher than the national average
	Avoidable mortality rates are higher than other areas of the country
	Life expectancy is considerably less than surrounding areas and the England average apart from parts of Oldham and Bury
	Contents
	Summary of this section
	The proportion of CCG budgets that has been spent�on primary and community care has risen significantly
	Current list size and GP provision by GP practice (1/2)
	Current list size and GP provision by GP practice (2/2)
	Oldham in particular has many more registered patients per permanent GP on average than nationally or in other GM CCGs 
	Oldham CCG has a slightly higher proportion of GP practices rated inadequate than neighbouring CCGs
	There is some variation in quality of care for diabetes mellitus among Bury and HMR GPs
	There is some variation in quality, particularly among Salford GPs for CHD and diabetes mellitus
	Contents
	Section summary
	Bury has high elective admission rates with the �lowest quartile rate similar to the national median
	Oldham has high non-elective / emergency �activity and high variation in elective activity
	HMR has high levels of all activity with �particulary high variation in A&E attendances
	There are four sites within the NCA with some acute care for the NES commissioned at NMGH
	Emergency and elective hospital admissions are slightly higher than the national average
	Total admissions at PAHT have fallen with some inter-year fluctuations
	SRFT has seen growth across all activity, especially OP attendances
	Acute care spending is mostly lower than the national average but not as low as the lowest quartile in the country
	Contents
	Section summary
	HRG codes can be used to categorise A&E visits into major, standard and minor treatments or investigations
	A higher proportion of A&E attendances at PAHT and SRFT involve Standard and Minor investigations / treatments, respectively, than the national average
	Emergency bed days rose 9% per quarter in �16/17 Q1 to Q3 in Salford
	Case-mix adjusted average length of stay is relatively low at PAHT but relatively high at SRFT
	General and acute bed occupancy is consistently higher at �SRFT than at PAHT sites
	Maternity bed occupancy at PAHT has been historically�higher than the national average but has recently dipped
	>50% of all bed days at both trusts are occupied by stranded NEL patients with length of stay longer than 7 days
	>70% of all bed days for people aged 65+ are occupied by stranded NEL patients with length of stay longer than 7 days
	On average, 1,141 and 785 bed days are lost at PAHT and SRFT, respectively, every month due to DTOCs
	Both Bury and Rochdale sites were rated good by the �CQC while ROH and NMGH required improvement
	Fairfield scored good or outstanding for most services with critical care and end of life care not included in the latest inspection
	Rochdale is awaiting inspection, with the previous one from 2016 noting the need to improve urgent and emergency care
	ROH required improvement in many service areas including critical and medical care, plus care for children and young people
	NMGH required improvement in several service areas, especially in medical care and surgery
	Royal Salford was recently rated outstanding by the CQC with kind, caring staff and highly responsive services
	Quality indicators for stroke
	Quality indicators for myocardial infarction �and heart failure
	Quality indicators for diabetes mellitus
	Quality indicators for adult critical care (1/2)
	Quality indicators for adult critical care (2/2)
	Quality indicators for bowel cancer
	A&E waiting times are below the national 95% �target and trending down 
	For Pennine, the deteriorating performance is driven �by waiting times at NMGH and ROH
	RTT waiting times within 18 weeks are below the �national average at PAHT
	This is primarily driven by declining RTT waiting time �performance at NMGH and ROH
	Six-week diagnostic performance varies considerably from�month to month with Salford CO consistently below the target 
	Cancer treatment waiting times are better than the �national average and the national target at SRFT
	Both Oldham and Bury & Rochdale COs have seen declining�cancer treatment waiting time performance
	Sickness absence at Oldham and NM are now around the �target while Salford and Bury & Rochdale are doing better
	Vacancy rates for medical & dental staff roles are relatively�high at NM and are trending upwards
	Vacancy rates for nursing & midwifery staff roles are �highest at NM
	Bury & Rochdale CO vacancy rates and agency spend 
	Oldham CO vacancy rates and agency spend 
	North Manchester CO vacancy rates and agency spend 
	Staffing levels for critical care
	Staffing levels for day-time nursing shifts are below the �optimal staffing target at all COs
	Staffing levels for night-time nursing shifts are below the �optimal staffing target at Oldham and Salford
	T&O and some GM wards at FGH are below optimal levels – �there are also very low care staff fill rates for critical care
	Certain general surgery and ob-gyn wards at ROH are �below optimal staffing levels 
	Certain obstetrics, general surgery and paediatrics�wards at NMGH are below optimal staffing levels 
	Salford Royal has staffing challenges for registered nurse �rotas, in particular, across several specialties
	North West Ambulance Service quality assessment
	Ambulance activity to each of the NES and Salford sites
	NM, in particular, does not use estate as efficiently as other sites, and has substantial backlog maintenance costs of nearly £100m
	Both Trusts have underlying financial deficits
	Contents
	Section summary
	Fairfield General Hospital profile
	Rochdale Infirmary profile
	Royal Oldham Hospital profile
	North Manchester General Hospital profile
	Salford Royal Hospital profile


	7 CARE ACT POLICIES
	Presentation - Overview and Scrutiny - Care Act Policies


